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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Lithuanian Central Credit Union 

Report on the Audit of the Special-purpose Combined Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the special-purpose combined (consolidated) financial statements (financial statements) of Lithuanian Central 
Credit Union (the Union), its member credit unions and Stabilization Fund administrated by the Union (the Group), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
material accounting policy information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, of the financial position of the 
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
the accounting principles described in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the 
requirements of the Law on Audit of Financial Statements and Other Assurance Services of the Republic of Lithuania that are 
relevant to audit in the Republic of Lithuania, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Law 
on Audit of Financial Statements and Other Assurance Services of the Republic of Lithuan ia and the IESBA Code. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of the Matter 

We draw your attention to Note 2 of the financial statements, which discloses the basis of preparation of the financial 
statements. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Law on Central Credit 
Unions of the Republic of Lithuanian and the Group's accounting policies. For this reason, these financial statements may not 
be an appropriate source of information for other purposes. Our opinion is not qualified due to this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financia l statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Deloitte yra vadinamos Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu limited (OTTL) ir grupei priklausanl ios bendroves nares bei susijusios jmones (kartu - .. Deloitte organization"}, Kiekviena OTTL 
{dar vadinama . Delaine Global1 ir grupei priklausanti bendrove nare bei susijusi jmone yra atski ri ir nepriklausomi juridiniai asmenys, kurie vienas kit.am negali nustatyti 
jsipareigoj im4 tre(i4J4 Ja!j4 at:hilgiu. DTTL ir kiekviena grupei priklausanti bendrove nare bei susijusi jmone yra atsakingos tik u! s.aivo, o ne u! viena kites veiksmus ar neveikimi4. 
DTTL pati savaime paslaug4 klientams neteikia. Oaugiau informacijos gaJite rasti t ia 
http://Www2.deloitte .com/lt/lt/pages/about-deloitte/articles/about-deloltte.html 
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Key audit matter 

Impairment of loans and receivables from 
customers. 

As disclosed in the Credit risk disclosure under 
Financial risk management note as at 31 December 2024 
the gross loans and receivables from customers 
amounted to EUR 820,045 thousand, and the related 
expected credit losses amounted to EUR 19,509 
thousand. The basis of the Group's accounting policy is 
presented in the section Impairment of financial assets of 
the accounting policies note to the financial statements. 
Also, attention is drawn to the use of judgements and 
estimates, set out in the accounting policies note of 
Significant accounting estimates and judgements part (a) 
Impairment of financial assets in this area in the 
preparation of financial statements disclosures. 

Impairment of loans and receivables from customers is a 
subjective assessment area due to the level of judgement 
applied by the management in determining the extent of 
expected credit losses, which is dependent on the methods 
and models used, significant assumptions applied and 
consideration of estimation uncertainty. 

The significant assumptions applied by the management in 
determining the level of impairment for loans and 
receivables include selection of the appropriate method 
and model, identification of events of significant increase in 
credit risk, estimation of forward-looking information for 
different probability-weighted scenarios, the assessment of 
customers that are defaulted, a~propriate valuation of the 
related collaterals and the future expected cash flows 
relating to loans and receivables. 

Due to the material nature of loans and receivables from 
customers and the related judgment involved in the 
estimation of loans and receivables impairment, it is 
considered to be a key audit matter. 
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

We have gained an understanding (including understanding 
about assumptions, methods and models used) and tested 
design and implementation of the controls over the process 
of estimating individually and collectively assessed expected 
credit losses of loans and receivables from customers. Our 
audit strategy did not include reliance on controls operating 
effectiveness. 
We performed analytical procedures over loans and 
receivables and the expected credit losses disaggregated by 
loan type, risk groups, overdue periods, stages and other 
parameters. Our analysis based on financial information as 
of 31 June 2024 against 31 December 2023 was aimed to 
identify unusual or unexpected fluctuations and trends, as 
well as outliners in stages and risk groups which could 
indicate mistakes in model or calculations. Based on the 
performed analysis we have identified a sample of loans and 
receivables from customers with characteristics of audit 
interest and performed test of details to cover the allocation 
of loans and receivables to customers between stages. We 
performed roll-forward aggregated analysis of loans and 
receivables as of 31 December 2024 to verify that there were 
not significant changes since 31 June 2024. 

We involved our internal IFRS specialist to assist us in 
assessing whether the existing accounting policy for the 
estimation of impairment of loans and receivables from 
customers is in accordance with requirements of IFRS 9 
"Financial instruments". 

For individually assessed loans for impairment, we selected 
a sample of outstanding loans and receivables and assessed 
whether the criteria for determining whether the credit 
losses expected to arise over the life of the asset or over next 
12 months agrees to the applied accounting policy. For the 
selected sample of loans and receivables we assessed 
management's forecast of the recoverable cash flows, the 
valuation of collaterals, estimation of recovery on default 
and other sources of repayment. For individually assessed 
loans allocated to stage 3 in accordance with IFRS 9 
"Financial instruments" we have also assessed the expected 
cash flows from realization of collateral. 

For the collectively assessed loans for impairment, we 
involved our internal IFRS specialist to assist us in assessing 
the model's compliance with IFRS requirements and key 
inputs used (probability of default, loss given default and 
exposure at default) by reviewing the selected expected 
credit loss calculation. We assessed the computation of the 
key inputs (probability of default, loss given default and 

• exposure at default) by agreeing data used in the calculation 
to the supporting evidence (e.g. default event and cash 
payments received) for a selected sample. Our internal IFRS 
specialist assisted in assessment of forward-looking 
adjustments by comparing the management's estimate with 
the publicly available reputable sources of information. 



Other matter 

We also assessed the adequacy of the related financial 
statements disclosures according to IFRS requirements in 
this area. 

Financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 April 2024. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting principles described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's 
internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 
the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purpose of the group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We shall communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

In accordance with the decision made by the General Meeting of Members on 30 April 2024 we have been appointed for the 
first time to carry out the audit of financial statements for the period 2024-2026. Our appointment to carry out the audit of 
financial statements in accordance with the decision made by General Meeting of Members is renewed every three years and 
the period of total uninterrupted engagement is one year. 

We confirm that our opinion in the section 'Opinion' is consistent with the additional report which we have submitted to the 
Group and its Audit Committee. 

We confirm that in light of our knowledge and bel ief, services provided to the Group are consistent with the requirements of 
the law and regulations and do not comprise non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of the Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of 
the European Parliament and of the Council. 

In the course of audit, we have not provided any other services except for audit of financial statements. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Simonas Rimasauskas. 

Deloitte Lietuva UAB 
5 

ma auskas 
Lithuani n Certified Auditor 
Licence No. 00466 

Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania 
14 April 2025 
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LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method 

Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method 

Net interest income 

Fee and commission income 
Fee and commission expenses 

Net fee and commission income (expenses) 

Other income 
Net result from securities transactions 
Net result from foreign currency transactions 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment of loans and other assets 
Change in provisions 
Payroll and related expenses 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 
Amortisation of intangible assets 
Depreciation of investment property 
Other operating expenses 

Profit (loss) before tax 

Income tax expense 

Net profit (loss) 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Net change in fair value during the year 
Change in expected credit loss 
Reclassification to profit (loss) 
Deferred income tax related to the above 
Net profit (loss) on debt instruments at fair value through other compre-
hensive income 

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of deferred in­
come tax 

Total comprehensive income 

Notes 

6 

6 

7 
7 

8 
9 
10 
11 
12 

19 
20 
21 
14 

13 

11 

13 

For the year 
ended 31 De-
cember2024 

74,613 

(25,729} 
48,884 

1,594 
(1,382) 

212 

1,608 
225 

8 
(4,365) 

(100) 
(21 ,937) 
(1,764) 

(230) 
(260) 

(10,876) 
11,405 

(1,245) 

10 160 

1,361 
4 

(3) 
(217) 
1,145 

1,145 

11,305 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 13 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 69 were authorized on 14 April 2025. 

For the year 
ended 31 De-
cember 2023 

59,701 

(13,681} 
46,020 

1,523 
(1 ,556) 

(33) 

1,916 
536 

7 
(3,483) 

305 
(18,799) 

(1,564) 
(224) 

(57) 
(10,263} 

14,361 

(1 ,460) 

12 901 

1,050 
31 

(35) 

(152} 
894 

894 

13,795 
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LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents held with central bank 

Loans and advances from credit institutions 
Loans and advances from other parties 

From natural persons 
From legal persons 

Securities 
At fair value through other comprehensive income 
At amortized cost 
At fair value through profit or loss 

Property, plant and equipment 
Right-of-use assets 
Intangible assets 
Investment property 
Assets held for sale 
Other assets 
Deferred tax assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Amounts due to credit and other financial institutions 
Deposits from other parties 

Deposits from natural persons 
Deposits from legal persons 

Subordinated loans 
Income tax payable 
Provisions 
Other liabilities 

Tota I liabilities 

EQUITY 
Primary member shares 
Additional sustainable member shares 
Additional unsustainable member shares 
Preference member shares 
Repayable member shares 
Reserve capital 
Legal and other reserves 
Financial asset revaluation reserve 
Retained (loss) of previous reporting periods 
Result for the reporting period 
Total equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

Notes 

15 

16 
17 
17 
17 
18 
18 
18 
18 
19 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
13 

24 
25 
25 
25 
27 

26 
28 

30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 

As at 31 De- As at 31 De-
cember 2024 cember 2023 

114,702 13,177 

2,761 2,485 
800,536 724,738 
471 ,020 447,835 
329,516 276,903 
161,099 102,388 
74,784 29,218 
81 ,228 67,819 
5,087 5,351 
8,552 7,381 
1,776 2,189 

430 514 
2,788 3,988 
2,465 
2,462 2,688 

592 867 
1,098,163 860,415 

148,358 76,901 
847,143 692,903 
778,846 643,091 
68,297 49,812 

7,899 5,405 
455 1,076 
523 687 

6,556 7,045 
1,010,934 784,017 

4,249 4,212 
47,488 47,998 

537 649 
30 30 

1,141 1,072 
81 194 

31 ,631 20,003 
265 (880) 

(8,353) (9,781) 
10,160 12,901 
87,229 76,398 

1,098,163 860,415 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 13 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

t out on pages 7 to 69 were authorized on 14 April 2025. 

and Account-
ing 
Egle Balciune 
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LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Operating activities 
Profit for the year 

Allowance for expected credit losses 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Depreciation/amortisation and write-off of property, plant and 

equipment and intangible assets 
Income tax expense 

Total adjustments in operating activities 

Changes in assets and liabilities used in operating activities 
(Increase) decrease in loans to credit unions 
(Increase) decrease in loans granted to other parties 
(Increase) decrease in other assets and other financial assets 
(Increase) decrease in deposits of credit unions and financial in-

stitutions 
Increase (decrease) in deposits of other parties 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 

Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax 
Interest paid 
Income tax paid 

Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax 
Income tax paid 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
Investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Acquisition of investment property 
Disposal of investment property 

Acquisition of debt securities 

Redemption of debt securities 

Acquisition of equity securities 

Redemption of equity securities 

Net cash flows used in investing activities 

Financing activities 

Payments from members for primary member shares 

Payments to members for primary member shares 

Payments from members for additional member shares 

Payments to members for additional member shares 

Other loans received 

Subordinated loans received 

Subordinated loans repaid 

Funds received from INVEGA UAB and ZOPGF UAB 

Funds repaid to INVEGA UAB and ZOPGF UAB 

Principal portion of the lease for right-of-use assets 
Net cash flows fromlused in financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period: 
Cash on hand and balances in correspondent account with the 

Bank of Lithuania 

Balances in correspondent accounts with banks 
Non-cash transactions 

Notes 

6 
6 

13 

16 

19, 20 

21 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

19 

15 

16 

For the year 
ended 31 De­
cember 2024 

10,160 
4,465 

(74,613) 
25,729 

2,254 

1,245 

(40,920) 

232 
(79,666) 

226 

62,971 
149,241 

(507) 
132,497 
73,193 

(20,096) 
154,834 
(1,304) 

153,530 

(2,201 ) 
231 

(1,053) 
1,364 

(120,930) 

61,494 

475 

(60,620) 

239 

(202) 

3,846 

(4,468) 

3,500 

(1,000) 

10,540 

{2,669) 

(666) 
9,120 

102,030 

15,153 

117,183 

114,702 

2,481 

For the year 
ended 31 De­
cember 2023 
Restated(*) 

12,901 
3,178 

(59,701 ) 
13,681 

1,845 

1,460 

(39,537) 

324 
(87,505) 

130 

9,889 
39,743 

(198) 
(37,617) 

57,862 
(10,411 ) 
(16,802) 

(422) 
(17,224) 

(1,423) 
801 

(490) 
1,186 

(40,260) 

40,872 

(75) 

27 

638 

199 

(344) 

4,724 

(4,721) 

2,000 

50 

2,100 

(5,153) 

(747) 
(1,892) 

(18,478) 

33,631 

15,153 

13,177 

1,976 

Acquisition of investment property (foreclosed assets) 21 (734) (957) 
•Restatement information in Note 2 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 13 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 69 were authorized on 14 April 2025. 
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LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Share caeital 
Addi- Addi-
tional tional 

Primary sustain- unsus- Prefer- Repaya- Re- Financial 
mem- able tainable ence blemem- Legal and serve assets re- Retained 

ber member member member ber other re- capi- valuation earnings 
Notes shares shares shares shares shares serves ta( reserve !deficit) Total: 

Balance as at 
31 December 
2022 4,357 47,862 782 30 799 13,800 222 !1,774) !3,639) 62,439 

Net profit (loss) 
for the period 12,901 12,901 
Other compre-
hensive income 894 894 
Comprehensive 
income 894 12,901 13,795 
New member 
shares acquired 
by members 30 199 4,724 4,923 
Member shares 
refunded to 
members 30 (344) (4,588) (133) 273 33 (4,759) 
Coverage of re-
tained deficit 30 (61) 61 
Transfer to re-
serves 30 6,203 !6,203) 
Balance as at 
31 December 
2023 4,212 47,998 649 30 1,072 20,003 194 !880) 3,120 76,398 
Net profit (loss) 
for the period 10,160 10,160 
Other compre-
hensive income 1,145 1,145 
Comprehensive 
income 1,145 
New member 

10,160 11 ,305 

shares acquired 
by members 30 239 3,846 4,085 
Member shares 
refunded to 
members 30 (202) (4,356) (112) 69 42 (4,559) 
Coverage of re-
tained deficit 30 (155) 155 
Transfer to re-
serves 29 11 ,628 !11,628) 
Balance as at 
31 December 
2024 4,249 47,488 537 30 1,141 31 ,631 81 265 1,807 87,229 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 14 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 69 were authorized on 14 April 2025. 
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LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
The Lithuanian Central Credit Union (in Lithuanian language "Lietuvos centrine kredito unija", hereinafter "LCCU") 
was registered with the Lithuanian Register of Enterprises on 22 April 2002. On 28 November 2002, the Bank of 
Lithuania issued a license to LCCU No 54 to perform all operations provided for in the former Lithuanian Law on 
Central Credit Union. LCCU started its principal activities on 2 December 2002. LCCU is based at Savanori4 ave. 
363B-201, Kaunas. 
The group of the Lithuanian Central Credit Union (hereinafter "the Group"}, whose special purpose combined (con­
solidated) financial statements (hereinafter "financial statements") are presented here, consists of LCCU, it's mem­
ber credit unions and the stabilization fund administered by LCCU (hereinafter "the Group members", "the Group 
entities"). 
In both 2024 and 2023, LCCU provided services to its member credit unions and their members, and certain legal 
persons. As at 31 December 2024, LCCU contained 46 members, 45 of which were credit unions and the Re­
public of Lithuania (as at 31 December 2023: 46 members, 45 of which were credit unions and the Republic of 
Lithuania). On 19 December 2024, Achema Credit Union was renamed to Tikslas Credit Union. On 6 January 
2023, Vievio Taupa Credit Union changed its name to Elektrenai Credit Union. On 27 April 2023, Pakruojis Farm­
ers Credit Union was renamed to Pakruojis Credit Union. On 11 May 2023, Sirvintai Credit Union was renamed 
to KB Pilies Credit Union. As at 31 December 2024, the following credit unions were members of LCCU: 

1. Tikslas Credit Union (former Achema Credit Union) 
2. Alytus Credit Union 
3. Anyksciai Credit Union 
4. CentrasCredltUn~n 
5. Druskininkai Credit Union 
6. Elektrenai Credit Union (former Credit Union Vievio Taupa) 
7. Fortuna Credit Union 
8. Grinkiskis Credit Union 
9. Jurbarkas Credit Union 
10. Jonava Credit Union 
11. Kaunas Credit Union 
12. Kaunas Region Credit Union 
13. KB ARKU Credit Union 
14. KB Pilies Credit Union (former Sirvintai Credit Union) 
15. Kelme Credit Union 
16. Kedainiai Region Credit Union 
17. Klaipeda Credit Union 
18. Gargid4 Taupa Credit Union 
19. Germanto Lobis Credit Union 
20. Memelio Taupomoji Kasa Credit Union 
21. Delta Credit Union 
22. Neris Credit Union 
23. Magnus Credit Union 
24. Prien4 Taupa Credit Union 
25. Tikroji Viltis Credit Union 
26. SOduvos Parama Credit Union 
27. Ebitum Credit Union 
28. Taupa Credit Union 
29. Kretinga Credit Union 
30. Mazeikiai Credit Union 
31. Pagegiai Credit Union 
32. Pakruojis Credit Union (former Pakruojis Farmers Credit Union) 
33. Palanga Credit Union 
34. Panevezys Credit Union 
35. Pasvalys Credit Union 
36. Plunge Credit Union 
37. Seima Credit Union 
38. Silute Credit Union 
39. Taurage Credit Union 
40. Trakai Credit Union 
41. Ukmerges Farmers Credit Union 
42. Utena Credit Union 
43. Vilkaviskis Credit Union 
44. Vilnius Credit Union 
45. Vytauto Didiiojo Credit Union 
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Stabilization Fund 

Stabilization Fund is a fund managed by LCCU to ensure the solvency of the members of the Group, which 
consists of funds paid by the members of the Group and other assets. Stabilization Fund is not a legal person, it 
is administrated and managed by LCCU. Stabilization Fund has been separated from LCCU assets and its ac­
counting is administrated separately. 

If there are 10 or more member credit unions in LCCU, Stabilization Fund not later than in 10 years from the day 
LCCU received its license must contain the amount which is not less than 1% of LCCU's and its members' total 
assets. The funds from Stabilization Fund are used in these forms: used to provide subordinated loans and non­
refundable payments to credit unions, if they are included in credit union's reserve capital. The Group members 
have to make periodic and additional contributions to the Stabilization Fund. Additional contributions are made, if 
there are insufficient funds for predetermined payments from Stabilization fund. The size of periodical and addi­
tional contributions is calculated considering the Group's and its members' assets and business risk. LCCU sets 
business risks criteria for the Group members. The Group members' periodical and annual contributions to Sta­
bilization Fund are the expenses of LCCU and its members. Periodical contributions are not refundable. If addi­
tional contributions to Stabilization Fund are lent and returned to the fund, then additional contributions propor­
tionally to additional instalments made are repaid to the Group's members. The size of periodical and additional 
contributions to the Stabilization Fund is determined by Stabilization Fund Commission. Contributions to the Sta­
bilization fund are calculated on the basis of certain union's assets and risk Stage (internal rating of the credit 
union), which varied from 0.14% to 0.28% of deposits of credit unions. Credit unions, which have received non­
refundable payments from Fund, make 100% higher contributions to the Fund. The loans to ensure the stability 
and continuity of credit unions' activities can be granted in accordance with the conditions of LCCU's Procedure 
for the Formation and Utilization of Stabilization Fund. The decision on usage of resources of the stabilization 
fund and the method thereof is passed by the Stabilization Fund Commission. 

As at 31 December 2024, net assets of the Stabilization Fund amounted to EUR 11 ,729 thousand (EUR 9,029 
thousand as at 31 December 2023). 

LCCU operates under the Lithuanian Law on Central Credit Unions. LCCU is a credit institution organized on 
co-operative basis, established by legal entities credit unions and the Lithuanian Government, and registered in 
the manner prescribed by the former Lithuanian Law on Central Credit Union. LCCU operates on the basis of 
share capital contributed by members and performs the functions of liquidity maintenance and solvency recov­
ery of credit unions, performs clearing transactions, maintenance service of payment cards and internet bank for 
credit unions and their members, accepts deposits and other repayable funds, grants loans and takes on risks 
and responsibility relating to it. In addition , LCCU provides non-financial services to the credit unions. 

Each credit union in the Group is a credit institution, which meets the economic and social needs of its members 
and has a license to engage in and is engaged in accepting deposits and other repayable funds from non-profes­
sional markets participants, as well as has the rights to engage in the provision of other financial services specified 
in the Law on Credit Unions of the Republic of Lithuania to the persons specified by the Law and take the related 
risks and responsibility. The legal form of the credit union, as a legal entity, is a cooperative company. The credit 
union follows the Civil Code of the Republic of Lithuania, the Law on Credit Unions of the Republic of Lithuania, 
the Law on Financial Institutions of the Republic of Lithuania, the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Cooperative 
Societies and other laws, legislation adopted by the supervisory authority and its Articles of Association. 

Members of a credit union are natural persons who meet the criteria set out in the Law on Central Credit Unions. 
Associate members of a credit union may be any legal entity registered in the Republic of Lithuania with registered 
office in the territory of the municipality of the Republic of Lithuania, where the credit union's registered office is 
located, and in the territories of other municipalities, which share borders this municipality, as specified the articles 
of association of the credit union. 

The information about the members of the credit unions is provided below: 

As at 31 December 2024 

Members 

Natural persons 121,568 

Legal persons 

Associate mem­
bers 

7,015 

As at 31 December 2023 
Associate mem-

Members bers 

120,210 

6,786 

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had 588 employees (as at 31 December 2023, 576 employees). 

These financial statements have to be approved by the members of LCCU within the period of 4 months from the 
end date of the financial year. 
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The combined ( consolidated) financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Law on Central Credit Unions of the Republic of Lithuania to prepare such financial statements and by the 
Resolution No 03-116 of the Board of the Bank of Lithuania of 13 July 2017 on the Approval of the Description of 
the Requirements for the Combined (Consolidated) Financial Statements and Supervisory Reporting of Central 
Credit Unions. In light of these requirements, the special purpose financial statements of the Group have been 
prepared in accordance with the Group's accounting policies, as set out in these financial statements below. 

LCCU also prepares separate financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standarts (IFRS) as 
adopted by the EU, which are published under the Law on Central Credit Unions, as adopted by the Republic of 
Lithuania, on website www.lcku.lt. 

Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for financial assets stated at fair value. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 

The amounts in these financial statements are presented in EUR, which is the functional and presentation cur­
rency of the Group. 

Due to rounding of certain amounts to thousand, figures in the tables may differ. Such rounding errors are imma­
terial in these financial statements. 

COMBINATION (CONSOLIDATION) OF THE GROUP'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The combined (consolidated) financial statements of the Group use the financial information of the entities within 
the Group for the same reporting period (the separate financial statements of each member of the Group). 

Operating results and balance-sheet items of each credit union member are included in the combined (consoli­
dated) financial statements from the day the credit union becomes the Group member. If a credit union withdraws 
from the Group, its operating results and balance-sheet items are included in the combined (consolidated) finan­
cial statements until the date of withdrawal. 

When a new member joins, all information is transferred to the Group's systems. The balance-sheet items of a 
new member are aggregated in accordance with the principles and rules set out in the following note. Credit 
unions comply with the requirements of the Lithuanian Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the Republic 
of Lithuania, therefore, their financial information is restated to comply with the accounting principles applied by 
the Group, as set out below in these financial statements. A new member's assets and liabilities recognised and 
measured at carrying amount before the admission are reflected in the combined (consolidated) financial state­
ments of the Group. Any retained earnings (loss) generated (incurred) before the admission are reported under 
the Groups reserve capital. Any differences arising from the following recalculations are reported under retained 
earnings (loss). The share capital of a new member is added to the Group's share capital. Cash balances of a 
new member of the Group accounted for at the date of admission are reported in the statement of cash flows 
under financing activities. Assets and liabilities of a new member are disclosed in the movement tables presented 
in the notes to the financial statements as increase admission of a new member. 

The borrowers' financial position and collaterals of a new member of the Group are not re-assessed as at the date 
of admission. The adjustment to the assessment of ECLs on loan portfolio as at the date of admission is made in 
accordance with the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments using the most resent 
available assessment of the borrowers' financial position and collaterals of the newly admitted credit union made 
before the date of admission. The ECLs assessment as at the date of admission is based on the loan Stages 
described the section of accounting policy "Impairment of financial assets", applicable as at the date of admission, 
taking into account the increased risk since the loan issuance date. For this reason, the Stages of loans assessed 
at the date of admission range from Stage 1 (credit risk has not increased significantly from the loan issue date) 
to Stage 3 (the loan is impaired). 

At the time of preparation of the combined (consolidated) financial statements, all the balance sheet, profit and 
loss items of the individual credit unions, LCCU and the stabilization fund are aggregated. The aggregation of 
items is conducted by eliminating the intercompany transactions and balances between Group entities: 

13 page of 69 



LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

Eliminating the value of the equity capital of LCCU and of each credit union's investment in the equity capital 
of the LCCU, including the amount of related special provisions for the shares of LCCU, recorded in separate 
credit unions; 

Eliminating income of the Stabilization Fund and the expenses of each credit union in paying contributions 
to the Fund, the contributions to the Stabilization Fund for prior periods are eliminated from the retained 
earnings (only current contributions to the Stabilization Fund are eliminated for current period); 
Eliminating payments from and/or subordinated loans granted by the Stabilization Fund and, respectively, 
credit union's components of equity and/or loans payable; 
Eliminating the intercompany loans and other advances (including accrued interest), current accounts and 
term deposits (including accrued interest), other assets and other liabilities, liquidity reserve accounts; 
The funding to those affected by COVID-19 and war are eliminated and, given that the Group has under­
taken a liability to pay all received cash flows to a third party based on related contracts without significant 
overdue and that the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial assets trans­
ferred, the loans, funds and related liabilities granted under those instruments are not recognised in the 
Group's statement of financial position. 
Eliminating intergroup income and expenses (interest income and expenses, commissions, other income 
and expenses); 

If a particular item (account) is used solely for the purpose of representing intercompany transactions or 
balances, these amounts are eliminated. 

All other balance sheet, profit and loss items are also reviewed to identify the possible amounts of any intercom­
pany transactions and balances that should be eliminated. 

Credit unions comply with the requirements of the Lithuanian Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the 
Republic of Lithuania, therefore, their financial information is restated to comply with the accounting principles 
applied by the Group, as set out below in these financial statements. 

When restating financial information, it is important to consider that the amounts being restated correspond to the 
reporting period for which the financial statements are being prepared, the items of profit or loss would reflect the 
economic activities of the reporting period or the restated results. 

The summary of restatements (or non-restatements) made to the financial information of credit unions to comply 
with the Group accounting policy described below, are as follows: 

The cash items of the members of the Group are not restated, considering that there are no differences in 
the accounting principles applied by the members of the Group and the Group in this area. 

Cash balances in current accounts and term deposits held in other credit institutions are not restated after 
making sure that the interest is accrued at the effective interest rate, and the expected credit loss is meas­
ured in accordance with the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. 

Equity and debt investments are restated due to the following matters: 

o Proper classification of equity and debt investments in accordance with the requirements analogical to 
those in IFRS 9, Financial Instruments; 

o Appropriate subsequent measurement to a revised classification under the requirements analogical to 
those in IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. Adjustments are made accordingly by transferring the gain (loss) 
to the revaluation reserve and/or any other adjustments required. Restatements are also made for the 
presentation of expected credit losses under the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments; 

o It is assured that the market value of securities when measured at fair value is determined in accordance 
with the Group's Accounting Policy; 

o Assets that are measured at amortized cost are accounted for in accordance with the requirements an­
alogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial Instruments; 

o Securities adjustments are made for each securities position held by an individual member of the Group. 

Loans (granted or purchased) and advances are restated for: 

o Appropriate classification in accordance with the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments (and, accordingly, whether amortized cost is measured correctly); 
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o Appropriate subsequent assessment on the application of the effective interest rate method under re­
viewed classification in accordance with the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial Instru­
ments; 

o The Group's expected credit losses are measured in accordance with the requirements analogical to 
those in IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. 

o Loan portfolio adjustments listed above are made on a combined (consolidated) Stage rather than on an 
individual Stage for the Group members. 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are restated due to: 

o Timing or method that do not match the Group's accounting policies for depreciation or amortisation; 

o Impairment, if any, determined but not recognized; 

o Classification: reviewing the existence of significant leased assets to third parties, where such assets 
should be classified as investment property in Group's financial statements. 

foreclosed assets are restated by reviewing the appropriateness oftheirvaluation principles within the Group 
and the appropriateness of its classification, depending on the nature and objectives of the repossessed 
assets. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not usually restated if they are calculated by an individual member of 
the Group, unless differences are identified or arise from other restatements. If a member of the Group does 
not restate deferred tax assets or liabilities (it is permitted not to calculate/recognize deferred taxes under 
the provisions of the Lithuanian Financial Reporting Standards, depending on the size of the credit union's 
assets) , such restatement is performed at the time of preparing the combined (consolidated) financial state­
ments. The Group also assesses the need for impairment of deferred tax assets previously recognized or 
initially calculated within the Group, depending on their realisation. 

Other assets and other liabilities are restated if there is a discrepancy between the Group's accounting 
policies and the financial statements of the individual members of the Group (other assets are also subject 
to the expected credit losses if they are subject to the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments). In any event, no restatement is made for such items if the amounts and the effect of the 
restatement would be insignificant. 

Items related to current taxes (current accounting period income tax) are not restated. 

Items of accepted term deposits and current accounts shall not be restated if it is assured that the interest 
is accrued correctly and there are no other possible discrepancies. 

Items of loans received are not restated if they are subject to an effective interest rate application (and there 
are no other reasons for restatement under the terms of existing contracts). 

Accruals (including vacation reserve) are not restated, but care is taken to ensure that all accruals are ac­
counted for. 
Equity items are not restated but are reasonably assured of fair presentation in the Group's financial state­
ments. State owned shares in LCCU are accounted for in the Group's equity as member shares. 
Interest income and interest expenses are restated due to the application of the effective interest rate 
method of accounting. The restatement is performed by segmenting the portfolio if it is not possible to meas­
ure the impact on the individual financial instrument. 

Gain or loss on securities is restated according to the above debt and equity restatement, as described 
above. 

Commission income and expenses are not restated but reviewed for proper recognition and classification in 
accordance with the Group's accounting policies. 

Operating expenses, other income and expenses are not restated, unless the need is established for indi­
vidual credit unions or arises from recalculations of other items. 

All types of revenue are additionally assessed for the need of further significant adjustments according to 
adoption of the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

The lease expenses incurred by the Group members are additionally restated by recognising the right-of­
use assets and associated liabilities respectively (as well as interest expenses and depreciation). 

The preparation of the combined (consolidated) financial statements of the Group also requires the Group to make 
significant accounting estimates in accordance with the Group accounting policies to ensure that they are properly 
accounted for and disclosed in the Group's financial statements. 
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No adjustments are made if the amounts are insignificant to the Group's financial statements, or the estimated 
effect of the restatement is not significant (would not materially affect the Group's financial statements). Restate­
ments are not carried out for items that are eliminated in a consolidation (and therefore would not have any impact 
on the Group's financial statements). 

In addition to the aforementioned restatements, combining financial statements includes additional consolidation 
entries that are made related to the preparation of the Group's financial statements in accordance with the Group's 
accounting policies (not related to the restatement of financial information provided by individual members of the 
Group, but to group-wide double entries or significant accounting estimates under the Group's accounting poli­
cies). 
After combining all similar items of assets, liabilities and equity of the Group members, similar amounts of income 
and expenses of the Group members, after eliminating intercompany transactions and balances in the consolida­
tion, restating the financial information of Group members and performing other consolidation entries at the Group 
Stage, the Group's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are prepared. Follow­
ing the steps described above, the combined (consolidated) statements of cash flows and changes in equity are 
also prepared in the same way. 

CHANGE OF CASH FLOW MEASUREMENT 

The cash flow statement was restated by changing the measurement of cash flow from operating activities. The 
lines for commission income received, commission expenses paid, income related to non-financial and other 
operating income, and other operating expenses paid have been eliminated. Cash flows from operating activities 
are measured using the indirect method, including profit for the year, provisions for impairment, interest income, 
interest expenses, depreciation, amortization and write-offs, and income tax expenses. The cash flows generated 
by subordinated loans has been separated in the measurement of financial activities to present separately 
amounts received and returned. Cash flows have been recalculated for 2023 according to the changed measure­
ment. The changes in cash flow items are presented below: 

Cash flow statement items 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
Net cash flows used in investing activities 
Net cash flows from/ used in financing activities 

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 

For the year 
ended 31 Decem- Reclassification 
ber 2023 
(17497) 273 
638 
(1 619) (273) 

For the year ended 
31 December 2023 
Restated 
(17224) 
638 
(1 892) 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for using the official exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into a local currency are recog­
nized in the statement of comprehensive income. Foreign currency balances at the year-end are translated using 
the exchange rate prevailing at the year-end. 

REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION 

Effective interest rate application 

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized using the effective 
interest rate (EIR). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period (until the next 
revaluation) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. EIR (including cost of amortized 
asset) calculation includes all fees and commissions paid or received between parties to the contract that are an 
integral part of EIR, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 

If expected cash flows are revaluated because of different reasons than changes in credit risk, the corresponding 
gain or loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, increasing or reducing other revenue. 

Interest income and expenses 

For gross carrying amount calculation, the Group calculates interest income by applying EIR on financial assets, 
except assets that are fully impaired. 
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When financial assets are impaired and therefore are considered as of Stage 3 financial assets (see explanation 
below), the Group calculates interest income by applying EIR on the value of financial assets measured at net 
amortized cost. If financial assets return to a performing status and are no longer credit impaired, the Group 
reverts to interest income calculation from the gross carrying amount. 

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI), the Group calculates interest income by 
calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate and applying this rate to the amortized cost of the financial 
assets. Credit-adjusted effective interest rate is an interest rate which, at the moment of recognition, discounts 
expected cash flows (including expected credit losses) to the amortized cost of such assets. 

Negative earnings 

Negative interest on financial assets is recognized as interest expense, and negative interest on financial liabili­
ties is recognized as interest income. 

Commission income and expense 

Commission income on transactions is recognized when the related transaction has been performed, except for 
commissions that are part of effective interest rate. Commission expenses are recognized when incurred. 

INCOME TAX 

In line with the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania, the standard corporate tax rate for 
entities registered in the Republic of Lithuania is 15%. As of 1 January 2025, the standard corporate tax rate is 
16%. Taxable operating losses may be carried forward to future periods for an indefinite period, provided that the 
entity's operations giving rise to the losses are not changed, unless the unit is no longer operating for reasons 
beyond its control. Losses arising from the disposal of securities and/or derivatives may be carried forward indef­
initely. Tax losses carried forward can be used to reduce the taxable profit earned during the reporting year by 
maximum 70% if the standard corporate income tax rate is applied. Deferred income tax is provided in full , using 
the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax is provided using tax rates and rates of 
utilization at the date of the statement of financial position that are expected to apply at the time of disposal of the 
deferred tax asset or the settlement of the deferred tax liability. 

Taxable profit, exceeding the threshold of EUR 2 million, in the period starting from 1 January 2020 is subject to 
an additional 5% income tax rate. Taking into account profit earned by individual members of the Group, LCCU 
calculates an additional 5% income tax rate, and other Group's entities will continue to be subject to 15% rate, as 
defined in the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania. The Group's deferred tax asset and 
liability were measured using a standard corporate tax rate of 16%, effective as of 1 January 2025. 

The principal temporary differences arise from the revaluation of financial assets and from accrued expenses. 
The rates in force or approved at the reporting date are those used to calculate deferred income tax. However, 
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability at the time of 
the business combination and does not affect either accounting or taxable profit or loss at the time of the trans­
action. 

When the total deferred tax asset is calculated, it is recognized in the financial statements only to the extent that 
management believes that it is probable that it will be realized . 

Deferred tax assets relating to the revaluation of available-for-sale securities at fair value through other compre­
hensive income are also reported in other comprehensive income. 
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Temporary solidarity contribution 

The obligation to pay a temporary solidarity contribution was established until 31 December 2025. A 60% tempo­
rary solidarity contribution rate will be charged on net interest income that is 50 % greater than the average net 
interest income in the four-year reporting period. The interest income earned on credit agreements concluded on 
or after 1 January 2023 shall be exempt from the calculation of the temporary solidarity contribution (except for 
agreements with financial sector entities). The temporary solidarity contribution is also reduced by the deposit 
insurance premiums paid to the Deposit Insurance Fund, and the net interest income of the current payment 
period, after paying the temporary solidarity contribution of that period , should amount to at least net interest 
income of the year 2022 increased by 15%. The solidarity contribution is payable in advance quarterly instal­
ments, and the annual solidarity contribution is payable at the end of the year based on the final calculations. 

Given that the solidarity contribution is temporary and its base does not meet the definition of taxable profit under 
the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania, as it is payable on the surplus of the interest rather 
than on the taxable profit, the temporary solidarity contribution is not considered as a corporate tax. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Group calculated and paid an advance solidarity contribution of EUR 676 thousand 
taking into account the net interest income of the Group. However, following the annual recalculation, it was found 
that the Group did not meet the criteria and the overpayment of the advance solidarity contribution was refunded 
to the Group in 2024. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents represent amounts with maturity of 3 months or less from the date of their acquisition 
or repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand 
and cash balances in the correspondent accounts with the Bank of Lithuania and commercial banks, accounted 
for under "Cash and cash equivalents held with central bank". 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

Moment of initial recognition 

Financial assets and liabilities, other than loans and prepayments from customers and liabilities to customers, are 
initially recognized at settlement date. Loans and prepayments from customers are recognised when funds are 
transferred to customers' accounts. Liabilities to customers are recognized when funds are transferred to the Group. 

Initial recognition and evaluation 

The initial recognition of a financial asset to a relevant group depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics 
of the financial asset and the business model defining the management of the financial asset. Excluding other ad­
vances that do not have a significant financing component, the Group initially measures financial assets at fair value 
plus transaction costs, when the financial asset is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Other advances that 
do not have a significant financing component are measured at transaction price under IFRS 15. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to 
give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. 
This measurement is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at a financial instrument Stage. 

The financial asset management model specifies how financial assets are managed to generate cash flows. The 
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial 
assets, or both. The business model and the SPPI test are explained in more detail below. 
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Groups of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The Group classifies all financial assets according to the business management model and the contractual terms 
of the assets into the following: 

amortized cost; 
fair value through other comprehensive income; 
fair value through profit or loss. 

The Group classifies and measures derivatives and investments in collective investment undertakings at fair value 
through profit or loss. The Group may also classify other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, 
if it would significantly reduce the discrepancies of measurement or recognition (otherwise known as accounting 
mismatch). 

Financial liabilities, other than loans and financial guarantees, are measured at amortized cost or fair value 
through profit or loss when these are derivatives either held for trading or measured at fair value. 

Advances from credit institutions, loans granted to and advances from other customers. fi­
nancial investments measured at amortized cost 

The Group measures loans and advances from credit institutions, loans and advances from other customers and 
other financial investments at amortized cost, only if both of the following conditions are met: 

financial assets are held within the business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect their 
contractual cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of financial assets give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Business model assessment 

The Group determines its business model at a Stage that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed 
together to achieve a particular business objective. Group's business model is not measured by an instrument­
by-instrument approach to classification, but at a higher Stage of portfolio aggregation and is based on factors 
such as: 

(a) how the results of the business management model are measured, and financial assets held under the 
business model treated, how they are reported to the management; 

(b) the risk affecting the result of the business model (and financial assets held under the business model), 
foremost how those risks are managed; 

(c) how the business managers are remunerated (for example, what is the remuneration based on - the fair 
value of the assets or contractual cash flows collected); 

(d) the expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of assessment. 

The assessment of the business management model is based on reasonably plausible scenarios, regardless of 
"worst case" or "stress case" scenarios. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that differs from 
the Group's initial expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets 
under the business model but considers such information when measuring newly acquired financial assets. 

SPPI test 

During the second part of grouping process, the Group evaluates contractual terms of financial assets, to check 
whether they correspond to SPPI test. For financial asset would be attributed and valued at amortised cost or at 
fair value through other comprehensive income, cash flows coming from financial asset should be only solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) from main unfulfilled amount. This measurement is referred to as the 
SPPI test and is performed at a financial instrument Stage. 

Principal amount is the real value of financial assets during the moment recognition. Interest is comprised of time 
value of money, main uncovered amount related with credit risk for certain period and other main credit risk and 
expenses together with profit margin. 

Due to contractual terms which tolerate larger than de minimis risk or which cause to originate contractual cash 
flows unrelated with principal amount and interest payments of main non-covered amount, financial assets should 
be carried at fair value through profit or loss. 
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Debt financial instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Under the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, the Group classifies its financial assets as debt financial 
instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, when both mentioned below conditions 
are met: 

Instrument is kept based on the business model, which is successful in collection of cash flows and in selling 
of financial assets. 
Contractual terms of financial asset comply with SPPI test. 

Subsequently financial instruments that are accounted for at fair value through other comprehensive income are 
measured at fair value profit or loss to be presented in other comprehensive income. As well as financial assets 
valued at amortized cost, interest revenue and gain (loss) from changes in foreign currency are recognized 
through profit or loss. Valuation principles of expected credit losses for debt instruments valued at fair value 
through other comprehensive income are described below. When the Group has more than one investment into 
same investment security, it is considered that investment acquired earlier is realised first. Following derecognition 
of such debt instruments, accumulated profit or loss earlier recognized through other comprehensive income are 
reclassified to income (loss). 

Financial instruments carried at fair value though profit or loss 

All other debt financial instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and 
equity investments are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value equal to proceeds received net of transaction costs incurred. 
Subsequently borrowings are stated at amortized cost, which is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Borrowings are recognized 
on the day of settlement. Cash flows from interest generated by financial liabilities are considered as part of the 
operating activities. 

Management can assign a financial instrument to be accounted through profit or loss only when one of the follow­
ing criteria is met. This assignment is set at the Stage of the individual instruments: 

• classification removes or strongly reduces evaluation or recognition discrepancy, which, otherwise would arise 
during valuation of assets or liabilities or during recognition of their profit or loss by other means. 

or 

Liabilities are groups of financial liabilities, which are managed with their results carried at fair value, using 
documents-based risk management or investment strategy; 

or 

Liabilities, which contain one or more embedded derivatives, expect cases when such liabilities do not 
significantly change cash flows, arising from contractual liabilities, or without profound analysis is clear that, in 
case of a similar instrument, separation of embedded derivatives from principle agreement is impossible. 

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are recognized at fair value in the state­
ment of financial position. Changes in fair value are accounted in profit or loss, except for changes in fair value of 
liabilities recognized at fair value through profit or loss, due to changes in the Group's credit risk. Such changes 
are recognized through other comprehensive income and later are not reclassified to profit or loss. Interest, re­
ceived or paid on instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, are accumulated and recognized as 
interest income or interest expenses, respectively, in the statement of comprehensive income using effective 
interest rate and considering all discounts/premiums and transaction expenses under IFRS 9 requirements, which 
are an integral part of the instrument. Dividend income from equity instruments measured at fair value through 
profit or loss is recognized in income when right to dividends is acquired. 

Guarantees and loan commitments 

The Group grants guarantees and loan commitments. 

The guarantee represents a guarantee letter issued by LCCU or a credit union, a member of the Group, by which 
it unilaterally undertakes to pay the specified amount to the beneficiary of the guarantee if the person against 
whom the guarantee is given fails to fulfil or improperly fulfils the obligation to the beneficiary of the guarantee. 
Such guarantee agreements fall into expected credit loss requirements application scope. 
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Income from guarantees issued are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as fee and commission 
income. 

Lending obligations are obligations whereby the Group is obliged to grant a loan on terms and conditions to the 
customer. 

When the agreed guarantee or loan meets market conditions, the nominal contractual value of guarantees and 
loan commitments is not included into the statement of financial position. 

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Group does not perform reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities after their initial recognition, 
except extraordinary cases when the Group acquires, disposes or discontinues part of the business. Financial 
liabilities are never reclassified. 

Derecoqnition of financial assets and liabilities 

(a) Derecognition due to material changes in contractual terms 

The Group derecognises financial asset (e.g. loan grated to the customer), when the terms have been revised to 
the extent that it becomes a substantially new loan and the difference is recognized as derecognition profit or loss 
for that part for which has not been impaired. Newly granted loans are classified as Stage 1 (described below) 
loans for expected credit loss evaluation purposes, unless the new loan would be considered as purchased or 
originated credit impairment financial asset (POCI). 

In assessing whether to derecognise a loan, the Group considers, inter alia, the following factors: 

Changes in loan currency; 

Indication of equity signs; 

Changes in contractual party; 

Whether the change is such that instrument would not meet criteria of SPPI test. 

If a change does not have a material effect on cash flows, such change does not indicate the derecognition of 
financial asset. On a basis of changes in cash flows, which have been discounted based on the original EIR, the 
Group recognizes replacement income or loss to the extent, to which impairment has not been recognized. Cash 
flow from derecognition of POCI assets is accounted for in cash flows from operating activities. 

(b) Derecognition due to other reasons than material changes in contractual terms 

Financial assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's statement of financial position) when: 

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and 
either 

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but 
has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered into a pass­
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset 
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has 
retained. 

The Group involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 
the carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to 
repay (amount of the guarantee). Gain {loss) on disposal of financial assets is recognised on other income. 
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Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised as profit or loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Definition of default 

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss 
allowance is based on 12 month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which 
affects both the measurement of EC Ls and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk. 

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default: 

the debtor is past due more than 90 days on its credit obligations; 

the debtor is assessed as unlikely to pay its credit obligations. 

This definition of default is used by the Group for accounting and internal credit risk management purposes and 
is broadly consistent with the regulatory definition of default. The definition of default is appropriately tailored to 
reflect different characteristics of different types of assets. 

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Group takes into account both qualitative 
and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example, in corporate 
lending a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative 
indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key 
inputs in this analysis. The Group uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either 
developed internally or obtained from external sources. As noted in the definition of credit impaired financial assets 
above, default is evidence that an asset is credit impaired. Therefore credit impaired assets will include defaulted 
assets, but will also include other non-defaulted asset given the definition of credit impaired is broader than the 
definition of default. Such assets are classified as in default. 

Significant increase in credit risk 

The Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are 
subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance 
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Group's accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient 
that financial assets with 'low' credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase 
in credit risk. 

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the 
remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining ma­
turity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, 
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including 
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the 
Group's historical experience and expert credit assessment. 

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at initial recognition and at 
subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different probability of default. It is the 
weighting of these different scenarios that forms the basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used 
to determine whether credit risk has significantly increased. For corporate lending, forward-looking information 
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group's counterparties operate, obtained from eco­
nomic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisa­
tions, as well as consideration of various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic infor­
mation. For retail lending, forward-looking information includes the same economic forecasts as corporate lending 
with additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly for regions with a concentration to certain 
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industries, as well as internally generated information of customer payment behaviour. The Group allocates its 
counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk grade depending on their credit quality. The quantitative information 
is a primary indicator of significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PD by comparing: 

the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with 

the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts and circumstances at the 
time of initial recognition of the exposure. 

The PDs used are forward looking and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data used to measure the 
loss allowance for ECL. 

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD models on a timely ba­
sis. However, the Group still considers separately additional qualitative factors to assess if credit risk has in­
creased significantly. For corporate lending there is particular focus on assets that are included on a 'watch list' 
given an exposure is on a watch list once there is a concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counter­
party has deteriorated. For retail lending the Group considers the expectation of forbearance and payment holi­
days, credit scores and events such as unemployment, bankruptcy. 

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in 
absolute terms, in the PD will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared 
to a financial instrument with a higher PD. 

As a back-stop when an asset becomes 30 days past due, the Group considers that a significant increase in 
credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment mode, i.e. the loss allowance is measured 
as the lifetime ECL. In addition, loans that are individually assessed and are included on a watch list are in 
stage 2 of the impairment model. As noted, if there is adequate documentary evidence of credit impairment, the 
assets are moved to stage 3 of the impairment model. 

Write-off 

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the fi­
nancial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Group determines that the bor­
rower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activi­
ties to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group's enforcement activities will result in im­
pairment gains, which will be presented in 'net impairment loss on financial assets' in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

Summary of expected credit losses (ECL! valuation principles 

The Group measures and accounts for expected credit losses on all loans and other debt instruments (hereinafter 
"the financial instruments"), including loan commitments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
Under the requirements analogical to those in IFRS 9, equity instruments are not subject to valuation of expected 
credit losses. Expected credit losses on loan commitments and guarantees are accounted for as provisions. 

The expected credit loss allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset, unless 
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the 
12 months' expected credit loss. 

12-month ECL are the expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months 
after the reporting date. Both 12-month and lifetime ECL are calculated on individual or collective basis, depending 
on portfolio type of financial instruments. The principles for grouping financial assets measured on a collective 
basis are explained below. At the end of each reporting period, it is considered if the credit risk of financial instru­
ment has significantly increased since its initial measurement, considering changes in default risk during the re­
maining period of financial instrument. During this process, the Group categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 
and Stage 3 loans, and purchased or originated credit impairment financial assets (POCI) as described below: 

Stage 1: When loans are initially recognized , the Group recognises 12-month ECL. Loans with improved credit 
risk and which were transferred from Stage 2 are also considered to be Stage 1. 

Stage 2: If loan's credit risk has increased significantly after initial recognition, the Group records a lifetime 
ECL. Loans with impaired credit risk and which were transferred from Stage 3 are also considered to be Stage 
2. 
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Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Group records a lifetime ECL. 

POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on 
initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subse­
quently recognized based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that 
there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses. 

If the Group does not have reasonable expectations to recover all or part of its financial asset, gross carrying 
amount is reduced. This is considered a derecognition (partial) of financial asset. 

Calculation of expected credit loss 

The Group calculates expected credit losses based on probability weighted scenarios, in order to evaluate ex­
pected shortfalls in cash flows, discounted at approximate EIR. A shortfall in cash flows is a difference between 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to 
receive. 

Main elements used for calculation of expected credit loss are as follows: 

PD - probability of default. 

EAD - exposure at default (credit principal and accrued interest). 

LGD - loss given default, calculated on historic data of the Group. It represents the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender expects to receive, including recovery of any collateral. 

In calculation of expected credit losses for 2024 and 2023 and taking into account changes in interbank offered 
rate (EURIBOR), inflation and uncertainty due to geopolitical situation, the Group considered the following three 
possible scenarios: 

Scenario of economic downfall (pessimistic): assuming, that future macroeconomic changes will be signif­
icant taking into account the assumptions used by the Group in the stress test; 

Most likely scenario: assuming, that future macroeconomic changes will reflect the projections of economic 
experts; 

Optimistic scenario: assuming, that positive macroeconomic changes will reflect realistic economic fore­
casts published by Bank of Lithuania. 

The scenarios that allow to assess the potential losses under different market conditions were reviewed in 2024 
using macro trends and recent data. In view of a still prevalent uncertainty in the market and potential indications 
of recession, the worst-case scenario parameters were recalculated based on the parameters used by LCCU in 
the stress test. Weights attributed to scenarios allow appropriate assessment of potential losses, consequently a 
weight of 50% for the most likely scenario (2023: 50%), 30% for the pessimistic scenario (2023: 30%) and 20% 
for the optimistic scenario (2023: 20%). 

In determining the maturity of revolving credit facilities, the Group assesses the ECLs by taking into account the 
default risk over the maximum contractual period of the financial asset. However, for financial instruments such 
as credit cards, revolving credit facilities and overdraft facilities, which include both a loan and an undrawn com­
mitment component and the Group's contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commit­
ment does not limit the Group's exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period. For such financial 
instruments, the Group measures ECLs over the period that the Group is exposed to credit risk and expected 
credit losses would not be mitigated by credit risk management actions, even if that period extends beyond the 
maximum contractual period. In deciding on the period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk before 
taking credit risk mitigating actions, the Group shall take into account the period since the significant increase in 
credit risk and the defaults on similar assets, as well as the credit risk management actions that the Group would 
normally take in response to changes in credit risk indicators. 

Except for instruments of revolving credits, maximum period for expected credit loss is financial instrument's va­
lidity period, unless LCCU has a legal right to retrieve it earlier. 

PD and LGD parameters and the ECL calculation depend on the risk Stage of the loan: 

For loans at risk Stage 1, the 12-month ECLs are recognised - a part of ECL exposure, reflecting expected 
credit losses, which occur due to default events that are possible within 12 months after the valuation date; 

For loans at risk Stage 2 and 3, a lifetime ECLs are recognised - ECLs that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of the lending position. 
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Impairment (reversal) losses are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that 
are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying amount. The calculation of ECLs in 
2024 and 2023 was based on a number of factors that may have an adverse effect on the payment status of 
customers, collateral liquidity and higher expected loss. 

At the end of 2024, there was still uncertainty due to geopolitical tension and the potential impact on individual 
sectors, and there is therefore a likelihood that actual results may differ from estimates made. The aggregate 
impact of negative externalities was taken into account in both the assessment of specific risk exposures and the 
use of relevant parameters in recognition of ECLs. The risk Stage 2 was assigned to the segments of natural and 
legal persons most adversely affected or potentially indirectly affected by geopolitical factors, debtors who applied 
for additional financing intended as an aid to war-affected farms. Taking into account the above criteria, in 2024, 
the quality structure of the loan portfolio was adjusted with additional transfer of loans amounting to EUR 22,252 
thousand to risk Stage 2 (2023: EUR 27,864 thousand). Due to the reclassification between risk Stages, additional 
ECLs were recognised in amount of EUR 248 thousand (2023: EUR 300 thousand). 

In calculating ECLs in 2024, account was taken of the most current macroeconomic trends at the time and actual 
negative return from loan portfolio for 2009-2024. 

Moreover, in order to assess the impact of changes in parameters on the results of ECLs, taking into account the 
structure of the loan portfolio for 2024 and the results of EC Ls, a 1 % increase in LGD would result in 3.1 % impact 
on the final increase of ECLs (2023: 2.6%). 

Individual and collective assessment 

The Group lending positions can be assessed on individual or collective basis: 

Individual ECL assessment - ECL valuation method, when ECL is set individually for each lending position 
and is based on expected credit repayment schedules and their probabilities determined by provided scenar­
ios. 

Collective ECL assessment- ECL valuation method, when ECL is set collectively for a segment of borrowers 
(in case of lending positions) or for subgroup of homogenic group having been assigned financial instrument 
(in case of debt securities) with respective PD, LGD and EAD parameters (ECL = EAD x PD x LGD, based 
upon different scenarios and their weights). 

ECL of debt securities are based on the publicly available external sources, i.e. S&P Global and Fitch ratings. 

The individual assessment generally applies to significant lending positions (exceeding 1.5-2% of the Group's 
capital recalculated for supervisory purposes) and to all lending positions for other credit institutions. 

Expected credit loss accounting of debt securities valued at fair value through other comprehensive income 

ECLs for debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income do not reduce the carrying 
amount of these financial assets in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an 
amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in 
other comprehensive income as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or 
loss. The accumulated loss recognized in other comprehensive income is recycled to the profit and loss upon 
derecognition of the assets. In the Group, ECLs for debt instruments measured at fair value through other com­
prehensive income both in 2024 and 2023 was insignificant (less than EUR 53 thousand). 

Expected credit loss accounting of Purchased or Originated Credit Impairment financial assets (POCI) 

For POCI financial assets LCCU recognizes cumulative expected credit loss changes from initial recognition. 
POCI financial assets are remeasured at least annually with gains and losses on remeasurement or result of a 
sale recognised in other income (POCI remeasurement and sale result was EUR 183 thousand in 2024, and EUR 
287 thousand in 2023). 

Instruments of revolving credit 

The Group's product offering includes such revolving credit instruments as credit lines. The Group calculates 
expected credit losses during period , which reflects the Group's expectations on clients' behaviour, their possibility 
of defaulting and the Group's future risk mitigation measures, which could include radical or derecognition of 
revolving credit instruments' limits. Based on previous Group's experience and its expectations, calculation peri­
ods of expected credit loss parameters are same as for other instruments. 

Valuation of whether credit risk of revolving credit instrument has significantly increased is performed constantly. 
Interest rate used for discounting the expected credit losses is calculated based on average effective interest rate, 
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which, as expected, will be applied during anticipatory validity period of revolving credit instruments. Calculation 
of expected credit losses, including calculation of expected maturity and discount rate, is per-formed on individual 
basis, considering that, in the Group case, most of revolving credits are granted to other credit institutions. 

Forward looking information 

In its expected credit loss models, the Group relies on broad range historical and forward looking information, 
such as analysis of the macroeconomic environment. PDs and LGDs of the borrower segments of LCCU and its 
member credit unions are projected by building methodologically sound linear regression models based on the 
selection of statistically significant economic indicators from a set of variables. The following significant macroe­
conomic indicators are identified as having effect on the PD and LGD adjustments: real GDP growth, EURIBOR12 
index, housing affordability index, interest rates for businesses, agricultural output at prices current at the time, 
and the change in the repeat sales house price index. For the assessment of results for 2024, the forecast models 
based on historical data (2009-2024) and forward-looking macroeconomic indicators were used to assess PD 
and LGD parameters 

During each quarter, the Group observes said factual parameters together with the Bank of Lithuania forecasts 
and analyses their effect on creditworthiness of respective borrowers' segments. In an uncertain market situation 
and in order to reflect ECLs as accurately as possible, parameters may be updated, and weight of scenarios may 
be allocated on individual basis. 

Valuation of collateral 

To mitigate credit risk on financial assets, Group seeks to use collateral when possible. Collaterals may come in 
form of cash, investment securities, credits/guarantees, real estate, trade receivables, inventories, other non­
financial assets and etc. 
Collateral (unless foreclosed) is not recognized on the Group's statement of financial position, however, the value 
of collateral has effect on expected credit loss calculation in case of both individual and collective ECL valuation. 
Generally, collateral's value is assessed at the moment of inception and later is reassessed. Details on various 
Group's collaterals are described in the section "Credit Risk Management" below. For assessment of financial 
asset used as collateral, the Group uses data of an active market when possible. Other financial assets, without 
easily determined market values, are valued using valuation techniques. Non-financial collaterals, e.g . real estate, 
are valued using third parties (e.g. property appraisers) data, internal valuations of the Group or based on housing 
price index. 
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Foreclosed assets 

The Group's policy is to determine whether a foreclosed assets can be best used for its internal operations or 
should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset 
category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying amount of the original secured asset. Assets for 
which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (in case 
of financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell (in case of non-financial assets). Assets may also be accounted 
for as investment property or inventories if they meet the definitions of investment property or inventories. All 
assets foreclosed by the Group are accounted for as investment property, and, if the assets are expected to be 
sold within the reporting year, as held for sale. The value of investment property is .reduced by the amount of 
accumulated depreciation An equal amount of depreciation expenses is recognized in each month, starting from 
the repossession date. The depreciation period is 25 years. 

Financial assets write-off 

Financial assets are written-off fully or partially, only when Group does not expect to recover any asset-related 
funds and respectively has stopped property retrieval process. If written-off amount is larger than expected credit 
loss, the difference is treated as additional impairment loss deducted from the gross carrying value. Any other 
recoveries of financial assets are reported in the statement of comprehensive income under other income. 

Forborne and restructured loans 

Under certain circumstances, the Group in reaction to borrower's financial difficulties, does not take over collateral 
or does not realize it by other means, but provides discounts or amends initial terms of agreements. 

The Group considers a loan restructured if such changes are made due to current or expected financial difficulties 
of a borrower and no such changes would be made, if a borrower was financially capable. Factors indicating 
financial difficulties are failure to fulfil obligations or other material observations on borrower side made by Credit 
risk department. Restructuring may result in extension of payment's due date or changes in loan agreement terms. 
Group's policy is to properly observe all restructured loans to ensure, that future payments will be made. 

Decisions for recognition and classification between Stage 2 and 3 are set individually for each individual case. If 
these procedures identify losses related to the loan, such loan is considered impaired Stage 3 restructured loan 
until it is collected, or loan is written-off. Where a loan has been renegotiated or modified but is not derecognised, 
the Group also reassesses whether the credit risk has materially increased. The Group also considers is such 
loan should be classified as Stage 3 financial assets. If a loan was restructured, it should remain as such during 
whole 12-month monitoring period, during which the borrower should meet certain conditions in order to be trans­
ferred to a lover risk Stage. If changes in contractual agreements are material, recognition of loan is terminated, 
as described above. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. An equal amount 
of depreciation expenses is recognized in each month, starting from the month in which the asset is available for 
use and taking into account its useful life, unless depreciation is included in the cost of self-creation of the other 
asset. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment are as follows: buildings - 25 years, cars - 6 to 10 years, furniture: 3 to 6 years, computer hardware -
3 to 5 years, and other equipment - 3 to 6 years. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Gains 
and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount 
and are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. The assets' book values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss in statement of comprehensive income when they 
are incurred. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets are recorded at cost, less subsequent accumulated amortization and impairment. Amortization 
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when-ever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

The cost of an intangible asset internally generated by the Group is the sum of expenditure incurred from the date 
when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Development costs directly attributable to the crea­
tion and testing of unique computer software controlled by LCCU are recognized as intangible assets only when 
LCCU has reliable evidence that: 

it is technically possible to complete the production (development) of ,intangible assets, which could be put 
into use; 

it has technical capacities, financial and other resources necessary to complete development works; 

it intends to finish the production (development) of intangible assets and put it into use or sell it; 

it is able to use or sell intangible assets; 

it can prove that intangible assets will provide economic benefits to the Group in future periods; 

it can make a reliable estimate of expenses associated with the production (development) of intangible assets. 

Cost of the production (development) of computer software includes wages and salaries of employees directly 
involved in the production (development) process and the related taxes and other expenses directly related to the 
production (development) of computer software, if the assets meet all the above conditions. 

Maintenance and other development costs that are not attributed to the cost of computer software produced 
(developed) by the Company are recognized as an expenses in the period during which it was incurred. Costs 
expensed in previous financial periods cannot be subsequently adjusted and included in the cost of computer 
software production (development). 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
The Group's investment assets mostly consists of foreclosed assets which are leased by the Group members to 
third parties. The Group uses a cost model for valuation. Investment property is accounted for at acquisition 
(repossession) cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciation of investment property is 
charged on all foreclosed assets. Further information is provided for in Note 21 . 

Depreciation costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset on a monthly basis. The 
depreciation period applied to investment property is 25 years. 

Investment property is derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the profit or loss in the 
period of derecognition. 

Transfers to investment property are only made when there is a change in use: end of owner-occupation, com­
mencement of an operating lease to another party or end of construction. For a transfer from investment property, 
the asset is carried at its carrying amount on the date of the change of use. 

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are carried lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to 
sell. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts are recovered through sale 
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be com­
mitted to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year of the 
date of classification. The Group's assets held for sale consist of items that are expected to be sold within the 
next year. These are foreclosed collateral for the loans granted, and the Group's primary objective is to sell these 
foreclosed assets in the short term. The assets held for sale is broken down into land, buildings and equipment. 
For more details on the Group's assets held for sale, see Note 22. 
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Assets that are amortized/depreciated are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is the difference between the 
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. An asset is classified as a cash-generating unit for the purpose of assessing im­
pairment. Non-financial assets that were previously impaired are also assessed annually for reversal of impair­
ment, but to the limit of original value (not more). 

LEASE 

The Group is a lessee 

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use 
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. The useful life of the assets is 2 to 10 years. 

Right-of-use assets 

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets in­
cludes the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreci­
ated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise 
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The useful life in 2024 
and 2023 ranges from 2 to 10 years depending on the lease term. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-sub­
stance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the 
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties 
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to 
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the com­
mencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the estimates of interest and reduced for 
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modifi­
cation, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting 
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an 
option to purchase the underlying asset. 

The Group's lease liabilities are accounted for under the caption "Other liabilities". 
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Short-term leases and leases of /ow-value assets 

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehicles (i.e. , those 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are 
considered to be low value. The monthly lease payment for low-value assets is up to EUR 500. Lease payments 
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term, presented in the statement of comprehensive income under "Other operating expenses". 

The Group is a lessor 

At inception of a contract, the Group, as a lessor, determines whether the lease is a finance lease or an operating 
lease. If the Group determines that the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the underlying asset, the lease is a finance lease. Leases in which the Group do not transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Lease payments are 
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term and recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income under "Rent of premises, uncompensated use". Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income. Contingent payments are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are 
earned. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: PROVISIONS FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

In accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania, each employee leaving the 
Group after reaching retirement age is entitled to a one-off payment of 2 months' salary allowance. 

The past service costs are recognized as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Pre­
viously incurred service costs are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the average period until 
the benefits become vested . Any gains or losses appearing as a result of changes in terms of benefits (curtailment 
or settlement) are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. 

The cost of the liability for current employees is recognized as expenses immediately in the statement of compre­
hensive income. Remeasurements, consisting of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the 
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehen­
sive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. 

The liability is accounted for in the statement of financial position and reflects the present value of those benefits 
at the date of the statement of financial position. Present value of the non-current obligation to employees is 
determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using the discount rate which reflects the interest rate of 
the Government bonds of the same currency and similar maturity as the employment benefits. 

If material, provisions for retirement benefits have been recognized as provisions in the statement of financial 
position. 

EQUITY 

State owned LCCU member shares 

State owned shares in LCCU's financial statements (in accordance with the decision No 1084 of the Government 
of the Republic of Lithuania of 20 December 2017 ,,Regarding the membership in LCCU", by which government 
acquired one main and 29,596 additional shares from central credit union and provided EUR 8,879,800 capital 
help, and the agreement signed on 15 March 2018 "Regarding redemption of LCCU shares" and subsequent 
amendments) or their remaining balance after redemptions, are accounted in the Group's equity as member 
shares. Service costs paid for State capital assistance are recognised on an accrual basis as interest and other 
similar costs. Further information is provided for in Note 30. 

Repayable member shares 

The repayable member shares are recorded in equity until they are actually repaid to the members of the credit 
union. Further information is provided for in Note 30. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements requires to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of potential income and expenses as at the date of financial state­
ments as well as the amounts of income and expenses disclosed over the reporting period. Although these esti­
mates are based on the best estimate of events and actions made by the management, factual results may differ 
from these estimates. 

The Group makes accounting estimates and assumptions that affect amounts of assets and liabilities reported in 
current and subsequent financial years. Estimates and judgements are continually reviewed and evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors. 

(a) Impairment of financial assets (expected credit losses) 

Assessment of impairment losses on various financial assets are required to be based on some judgements: 
firstly, estimated future cash flows and collateral's value and timing need to be reassessed and considered 
whether, after initial recognition , credit risk has increased significantly. Such decisions are based on multiple 
factors, which can lead to different Stage of impairment. The Group's calculation of estimated credit losses con­
sists of complex models, containing multiple assumptions on applied data/entry choices and their interdepend­
ence. Elements of expected credit loss models, which are considered significant accounting estimates and judge­
ments, includes: 

LCCU's internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades; 

Qualitative and quantitative criteria applied (credit risk indications), according to which assessments are made 
if credit risk has increased significantly, and accordingly, if credit losses should be evaluated applying life­
time or 12-month expected credit losses. 

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis; 

Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs 

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemploy­
ment Stages and GDP, house pricing index and the effect on PDs and LGDs . 

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the eco­
nomic inputs into the ECL models. 

The methodology and assumptions used are reviewed regularly taking into consideration actual incurred losses. 

(b) Deferred tax asset 

In the financial statements, management has recognized deferred tax assets, because management estimates 
that they will be realized due to the unlimited loss carry forward period under the Income Tax Act, the continuing 
unlimited activity of the Group and the expected future profitability of the Group. The use of deferred tax assets is 
based on taxable profit forecasts. 

(c) Assessment of the impact of the Russian military invasion of the Republic of Ukraine and increase in EURI-
BOR 

While the report assessed the impact of the Russian military invasion of the Republic of Ukraine, there was still 
uncertainty about the further development of geopolitical tension and the impact of the European central bank's 
interest rate decisions on Lithuania, which may have a greater direct and indirect impact on borrowers whose 
activities are related to the said economic uncertainties. The management of LCCU considered this impact insig­
nificant given the profile of LCCU's customers, moreover, the restrictive measures may also have an indirect 
impact on both other borrowers as a result of the evolving economic situation and the securities portfolio held by 
the LCCU due to potential fluctuations in market prices. 

(d) Accounting of funding to those affected by COVID-19 and war 

Since 2022, while representing a consortium of credit unions, the Group participated in the implementation of the 
COVID-19 targeted financial measures of IL TE UAB as a financial intermediary. As at 31 December 2024, the 
Group had issued EUR 6,213 thousand of loans to finance those affected by the COVID-19 pandemic through 
these instruments (EUR 15,317 thousand in 2023). Additionally, the Group's not granted funds, related to afore­
mentioned COVID-19 targeted financial instruments, totalled EUR 277 thousand as at 31 December 2024 (as at 
31 December 2023, EUR 2,740 thousand). From 2022, while representing a consortium of credit unions, the 
Group participated as financial intermediary in the implementation of the targeted financial measures IL TE UAB 
for those affected by war. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had issued EUR 15,403 thousand of loans to 
finance those affected by the war through these instruments (2023: EUR 18,386 thousand). The not granted 
funds, related to aforementioned targeted financial instruments for those affected by war, totalled EUR 696 
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thousand (2023: EUR 440 thousand). Given that the Group has undertaken a liability to pay all received cash 
flows to a third party based on related contracts without significant overdue and that the Group transfers substan­
tially all the risks and rewards of the financial assets transferred, the loans, funds and related liabilities granted 
under those instruments are not recognised in the Group's statement of financial position. 

CONTINGENCIES 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed unless it is unlikely that an eco­
nomic benefit will be lost. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group's position at the date of the 
statement of financial position (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Subsequent events that 
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material. 
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NOTE 3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Fair value is the price which would be received for the sale of an asset or liability transfer in arm's length transac­
tion between market participants at measurement date. Fair value assessment assumes that the transaction of 
asset disposal or liability transfer takes place: 

- on the principal asset or liability market; 

- in the absence of a principal market, on the most favourable market for the given asset or liability. 

The principal or most favourable market must be accessible for the Group. 

Fair values of financial liabilities and financial assets carried at amortized cost, loans granted to credit unions and 
loans received, do not significantly differ from their carrying amounts since interest rates approximate to or do not 
differ significantly from market interest rates. Fair value indicates a discounted value of expected future cash 
flows. Expected cash flows are discounted using estimated weighted interest rates for individual financial asset 
portfolios at the reporting date, and thus determine the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. 

Fair value of securities carried at fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices or interbank quotes. 
These securities are considered to have quoted market prices. Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities 
is determined using the discounted cash flow models. 

Other assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the financial statements, however, fair value is dis­
closed. For securities held at amortized cost, the fair value is determined based on active market prices, using 
Level 1 data. 

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is determined using the discounted cash flow models. Other 
assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the financial statements, however, fair value is disclosed. 
Other assets and liabilities are measured using the present value method as effective discount rates - attributed 
to Level 3. In 2024 and 2023, the Group had no reclassifications of financial instruments from one Level to another. 

2024 2023 
Financial assets: Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value 
Cash and cash equivalents held 
with central bank 114,702 114,702 13,177 13,177 
Loans and advances from credit 
institutions 2,761 2,761 2,485 2,485 
Balances in correspondent and de-

posit accounts with the banks 2,481 2,481 1,976 1,976 
Loans to credit unions 280 280 509 509 

Loans and advances from other 
parties 800,536 817,633 724,738 735,430 
Securities 161,099 160,791 102,388 99,969 

At fair value through comprehen-
sive income 74,784 74,784 29,218 29,218 

At amortized cost 81 ,228 80,920 67,819 65,400 
At fair value through profit or loss 5,087 5,087 5,351 5,351 

As at 31 December 1,079,098 1,095,887 842,788 851,061 

2024 2023 
Financial liabilities: Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value 

Amounts due to credit and other 
financial institutions 148,358 148,358 76,901 76,901 
Deposits for other parties 847,143 854,950 692,903 698,992 

Deposits for natural persons 778,846 786,263 643,091 648,934 
Deposits for legal persons 68,297 68,687 49,812 50,058 

Subordinated loans 7,899 7,899 5,405 5,397 
Other financial liabilities 4,104 2,429 5,053 2,945 
As at 31 December 1,007,504 1,013,636 780,262 784,235 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's assets measured at fair value were debt securities at fair value 
through other comprehensive income and equity securities of collective investment undertakings at fair value 
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no liabilities carried at fair value. 
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The Group's investment risk in debt securities is managed by limiting the proportion of debt securities in the 
balance sheet, the structure and modified maturity of debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive 
income and securities at amortized cost, the maturity of debt securities, setting limits for possible losses due to 
unfavourable changes in interest rates, setting restrictions on LCCU investments by credit rating groups and 
groups of debt securities issuer countries, and restrictions on single issuer debt securities. VaR is used to estimate 
the risk of potential debt securities losses due to fluctuations in market prices (over a period of time with a certain 
Level of confidence). 

The market prices of securities are based on quoted market prices, if such prices are publicly available. 

The fair value is measured using 2 methods: on the basis of active market prices and using the present value 
method. The fair value is measured using inputs that are categorized into different Levels: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly; 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Methods and assumptions used to measure fair value: 

Instrument Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value 

Cash and balances with central banks CarrvinQ amount 

Balances with banks Carrying amount 

Loans to customers Future cash flows discounted using the sum of the EURIBOR base 
rate curve and average new sales margin of the reporting quarter. 
For mortgages the average new sales margin of mortgages of the 
reporting quarter is added to the base rate curve. 

Debt securities If issued in the Baltic states, quotes from Baltic market makers. If 
issued outside the Baltic states, or there are no quotes available from 
local market makers, or the quotes are clearly incorrect or artificial, 
market data. 

Equity instruments For equities of non-listed companies for which active market does 
not exist, any available trusted public information on recent trades or 
dividend discount model. 

Assets held for sale Market comparison aooroach - comparable sales data. 

Loans and deposits from credit institu- Carrying amount 
lions 

Deposits from customers Term deposit future cash flows discounted using the sum of the EU-
RIBOR base rate curve. 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair value of investment securities valued at fair value through other 
comprehensive income was determined based on active market price, using Level 1 inputs. 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair value of collective investment undertakings recognized at fair value 
through profit or loss were measured according to the information published by the issuer using Level 3 inputs. 

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the assets held for sale measured at fair value was less than 
the fair value less cost to sell. 

The Level of inputs used is indicated in the table below. 
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2024 2023 
Financial assets: Level 1 Level2 Level3 Level1 Level2 Level3 
Cash and cash equivalents held with 

114,702 13,177 central bank 
Loans and advances from credit institu-

2,481 280 1,976 509 tions 
Balances in correspondent and deposit ac- 2,481 1,976 
counts with the banks 
Loans to credit unions 280 509 

Loans and advances from other parties 817,633 735,430 
Securities 155,704 5,087 94,618 5,351 

At fair value through other comprehen-
74,784 29,218 sive income• 

At amortized cost 80,920 65,400 
At fair value through profit or loss 5,087 5,351 

As at 31 December 272,887 823,000 109,771 741,290 

2024 2023 
Financial liabilities: Level1 Level2 Level3 Level1 Level2 Level3 
Amounts due to credit and other financial 

148,358 76,901 institutions 
Deposits 854,950 698,992 
Subordinated loans 7,899 5,397 
Other financial liabilities 2.429 2,945 
As at 31 December . 1,013,636 784,235 

* No transfers occurred for securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
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NOTE 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

In order to properly manage the operational risks of the Group, the Group follows the LCCU's Group Risk Man­
agement Policy approved by LCCU's Supervisory Board, which is followed by LCCU and all LCCU member credit 
unions. The main purpose of Group's risk management is to identify, assess, limit and control various types of 
risk as the Group expands and pursues its strategic goals. The overall acceptable risk Level and risk management 
limits of Group are set by LCCU's Supervisory Board. LCCU's Board is responsible for implementing the Group 
Risk Management Strategy, and for developing, implementing and improving the system and procedures for iden­
tifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling the risks faced by the Group. 

LCCU and its member credit unions follow the same risk management standards and principles. The Group's risk 
management is based on risk identification, risk quantification, internal limits, indicators and standards by individ­
ual risk lines, lines of business, products, economic sectors, proposing measures to manage risk, control and 
monitoring, reporting. The managements of LCCU and credit unions are responsible for adhering to the risk man­
agement policy principles and all the Group employees are guided by these principles in their daily functions. 
Each member of the Group assumes full responsibility for the risks arising from its activities and decisions are 
made in accordance with the unified internal documents prepared by LCCU and approved by LCCU's Board. The 
Boards of LCCU and credit unions, taking into account the Group risk management limits set in the LCCU's Group 
Operational Risk Strategy, approve the maximum risk limits for individual risk types, above which risk manage­
ment measures are set. The management and assessment of individual risks is governed by LCCU, the credit 
union management and valuation policies, procedures that help identify, measure and limit the risks taken by 
setting internal limits, indicators and standards, implementing control procedures, and controlling compliance with 
the limits. LCCU reviews risk management policies and systems on a regular basis, at least once a year, in the 
light of market developments, new products, regulatory requirements and best practices. 

The main goal of the strategy is the successful continued operation of the Group with the additional condition of 
maintaining an adequate Level of capital and liquidity of the Group, and therefore the Capital Adequacy Assess­
ment Process (ICAAP) and the Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP) are an integral part of the 
Group's management and decision-making process. The capital adequacy assessment process determines the 
capital requirement in relation to the overall Level of risk taken and business strategy. The liquidity adequacy 
assessment process determines the appropriate need for a liquidity buffer. 

The Group member monitoring and verification procedures as well as regular (once a year) Group stress testing 
ensure that potential threats are identified properly and timely. The risk management limits of the Group are 
controlled quarterly, the Board and the Supervisory Board of LCCU are informed and credit unions of the Group 
members are informed about compliance with and enforcement with these limits. 

The key risks that the Group is exposed to are credit risk, market risk, operational risk, concentration risk and 
liquidity risk. In addition, the risks of environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors are identified. 
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Credit risk 

The Loan Committee participates in the assessment and management of credit risk of LCCU and its member 
credit unions. LCCU additionally re-estimates potential new customer loans of LCCU member credit unions to 
individually determined limits set for the credit unions. Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or 
other credit enhancements is described below: 

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet as-
sets: 2024 2023 
Cash and cash equivalents held with central bank 114,702 13,177 
Loans and advances from credit institutions 2,761 2,485 

Balances in bank correspondent accounts and overnight 
2,481 1,976 deposits 

Loans to credit unions 280 509 
Other loans and advances 800,536 724,738 

To natural persons 471 ,020 447,835 
To legal persons 329,516 276,903 

Securities 161,099 102,388 
At fair value through comprehensive income 74,784 29,218 
At amortized cost 81,228 67,819 
At fair value through profit or loss 5,087 5,351 

As at 31 December 1,079,098 842,788 

2024 2023 
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet 
items: 
Loan commitments 37,243 27,067 
Guarantees provided 764 837 
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Maximum exposure to credit risk taking into account collateral held or other credit enhancements is described 
below: 

Exposure Collateral value• 

value be- Govern-
fore ECL ment 

Residen- Commer- Other Total value Value of unse- Expected 
As at 31 December 2024 assess- tial real cial real Land collat- of collat- cured credit 

ment 
guaran-

estate estate erals erals positions losses tees 

Cash and cash equivalents 
114,702 114,702 held with central bank 

Loans and advances from 
2,761 2,761 credit institutions 

Balances in bank corre-
spondent accounts and over-
night deposits 

2,481 2,481 

Loans to credit unions 280 280 
Other loans and advances 820,045 29,946 761 ,759 486,391 532,840 312,753 2,123,689 36,881 (19,509) 

Natural persons 480,174 14,118 570,661 82,727 327,791 47,058 1,042,355 29,951 (9,154) 
Legal persons 339,871 15,828 191,098 403,664 205,049 265,695 1,081,334 6,930 (1 0,355) 

Securities 161 ,588 161,588 (489) 
At fair value through other 

74,784 74,784 comprehensive income 

At amortized cost 81 ,717 81,717 (489) 
At fair value through profit or 

5,087 5,087 loss 
Total 1,099,096 29,946 761 ,759 486,391 532,840 312,753 2,123,689 315,932 (19,998) 

Exposure Collateral value' 

value be- Govern-
fore ECL ment 

Residen- Commer- Other Total value Value of unse- Expected 
As at 31 December 2023 assess- tial real cial real Land collat- of collat- cured credit 

ment 
guaran-

estate estate erals erals positions losses tees 

Cash and cash equivalents 
13,177 13,177 held with central bank 

Loans and advances from 
2,487 credit institutions 2,487 (2) 

Balances in bank corre-
spondent accounts and over- 1,976 1,976 
night deposits 

Loans to credit unions 511 51 1 (2) 
Other loans and advances 740,395 35,183 708,732 388,592 435,291 112,068 1,679,866 37,753 (15,657) 

Natural persons 455,571 19,639 540,497 75,173 304,315 36,496 976,120 25,374 (7,736) 
Legal persons 284,824 15,544 168,235 313,419 130,976 75,572 703,746 12,379 (7,921) 

Securities 102,877 102,877 (489) 
At fair value through other 

29,218 29,218 comprehensive income 

At amortized cost 68,308 68,308 (489) 
At fair value through profit or 

5,351 5,351 loss 
Total 858,936 35,183 708,732 388,592 435,291 112,068 1,679,866 156,294 (16,148) 

• The collateral value is estimated in accordance with the requirements approved by LCCU and does not represent a fair value as at the date 
of the statement of financial position. 

The unsecured exposure value is determined separately at the Stage of each loan and recorded at the aggregate 
value. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty 
will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The purpose of credit risk management is to minimize risk of credit 
losses from loans. The main evaluation criteria of the Group credit unions, i.e. natural and legal persons, include 
assessment of reputation, financial capacity, business plan and environment, collateral and need for funds. The 
periodic reassessment of the position of debtors involves assessing their ability to meet their debt obligations. 

For the purpose of credit risk management, the Group does not provide loans with a maturity of more than 5 years 
for working capital development and liquidity. The maximum maturity of loans granted to member credit unions is 
30 years. 

The Loan Committee and/or the Board of each Group member may require loan collateral when examining a 
credit union loan application or during a loan repayment doubt. The Loan Committee examines whether a mort­
gage has been correctly assessed for a loan, examines its feasibility in the event of a loan default, and assesses 
collateral, surety, loan security and sufficient security. Collateral values are determined based on the requirements 
approved by LCCU. 
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The Group has implemented its internal risk management, assessment and rating system. Based on the system's 
data and other information, a preliminary assessment of the applicant's condition and follow-up monitoring of the 
borrower's condition is performed. 

The main criteria for assessing the borrower's - credit union's condition before granting a loan and throughout 
the entire term from loan origination to its repayment are: the credit union's rating and credit history of the credit 
union. The main criteria for assessing the condition of the member of the credit union (legal/natural person) include 
the member's financial capacity, reputation, project's business plan and environment, and the progress of absorp­
tion of funding. Based on the established approach, each criterion affecting the borrower's condition is given a 
score between 1 to 5, where 1 stands for very good, 2 - good, 3 - satisfactory, 4 - unsatisfactory, and 5 - poor. 
In line with the established approach, the borrower's condition is assessed in view of the weight of individual 
components. 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the loans issued by the Group are divided into the following classes: credit 
lines through which non-member credit unions grant loans from the funds of INVEGA UAB and IL TE, and loans 
to members (natural and legal persons) of credit unions (the Group members). The table below shows the quality 
of the non-impaired Group's loan portfolio by loan class (with information on net value of loans): 

31/12/2024 
Category of loan 

Credit lines to Loans to 
Borrower's condi- Credit lines to natural per- Credit lines to natural Loans to le-
tion credit unions sons legal persons persons gal persons Total 
1 - very good 280 754 7,124 281 ,056 46,626 335,840 
2 - good 694 1,871 96,291 167,941 266,797 
3 - satisfactory 342 220 33,345 35,314 69,221 
4 - unsatisfactory 7 349 28,171 43,605 72,132 
5 - ~oor 71 188 30,290 26,277 56,826 
Total 280 1,868 9,752 469,153 319,763 800,816 

31/12/2023 
Category of loan 

Credit lines to Loans to 
Borrower's condi- Credit lines to natural per- Credit lines to natural Loans to le-
tion credit unions sons legal persons persons gal persons Total 
1 - very good 509 1,112 1,810 286,060 43,780 333,271 
2-good 475 3,063 75,073 114,605 193,216 
3 - satisfactory 265 278 32,454 48,997 81 ,994 
4 - unsatisfactory 53 273 26,239 48,389 74,954 
5- ~oor 122 241 25,992 15,457 41,812 
Total 509 2,027 5,665 445,818 271,228 725,247 
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The following table shows the collaterals for syndicated loans and loans from other parties by the borrowers' status: 

31/12/2024 

Loans value before ECL assessment 
Expected Surplus 

Borrower's condi- Loans to Loans to credit Collateral 
(deficit) of Unsecured 

tion natural legal per- Total losses value 
collaterals part of loans 

persons sons 
1 -very good 282,007 54,205 336,212 (651) 734,251 424,822 26,783 
2-good 97,062 171 ,666 268,728 (1 ,931) 740,045 475,748 4,431 
3 - satisfactory 33,963 36,414 70,377 (1,157) 215,582 147,026 1,822 
4 - unsatisfactory 28,484 44,724 73,208 (1,076) 252,395 180,016 829 
5- poor 38,658 32,862 71 ,520 (14,694) 181 ,416 113,018 3,016 
Total 480,174 339,871 820,045 (19,509) 2,123,689 1,340,630 36,881 

31/12/2023 

Loans value before ECL assessment 
Expected Surplus 

Borrower's condi- Loans to Loans to credit Collateral 
(deficit) of Unsecured 

tion natural legal per- Total losses 
value 

collaterals part of loans 
persons sons 

1 - very good 287,408 45,726 333,134 (367) 734,416 424,361 22,997 
2 -good 75,619 119,409 195,028 (1,812) 451 ,476 263,320 6,871 
3 - satisfactory 32,982 50,347 83,329 (1,336) 202,165 122,200 3,341 
4 - unsatisfactory 26,613 50,016 76,629 (1 ,676) 174,311 98,757 1,075 
5- poor 32,949 19,326 52,275 (10,466) 117,498 69,992 3,469 

Total 455,571 284,824 740,395 (15,657) 1,679,866 978,630 37,753 

Value from collateral is recovered in case of borrowers' default on the basis of contractual terms and conditions 
and other legal acts. 

Loans are not granted if the borrower does not comply with the terms and conditions of LCCU and its member 
credit union loan granting procedures. The Boards of LCCU or its member credit union, upon receipt of the Loan 
Committee's conclusions (recommendations on loan availability, required collateral, etc.), reassesses the loan 
availability and makes the loan decision. 

Within the Group, all loans (except deposits, funds held in accounts with other credit institutions, pre-payments, 
guarantees and sureties) are granted to credit unions other than members of LCCU and credit union members 
(natural/legal persons: farmers, private limited companies and cooperatives). 

In order to reduce credit risk, the Bank of Lithuania has set a maximum exposure value per borrower - the expo­
sure value per borrower shall not exceed 25% of the recalculated Tier 1 capital of LCCU or its member credit 
union. The Group sets internal limits for individual loan types and loan amounts. The Group sets and reviews 
internal maximum loan and exposure rates that are more conservative than those set by the Bank of Lithuania. 
When issuing a position, an assessment of whether a position will be assigned to a group of related persons is 
made. As at 31 December 2024, the maximum amount of a single loan, comprising loans to several related bor­
rowers treated as a single borrower, was EUR 8,472 thousand or 9.98% of the Group's recalculated Tier 1 capital 
(as at 31 December 2023: EUR 7,339 thousand or 9.99% of the Group's calculated capital). 
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The loans issued by the LCCU Group are listed below by delay as at 31 December 2024 and 2023: 

31/12/2024 

Natural per- Expected Collateral Unsecured 
sons Legal persons Total credit losses value part of loans 

Not overdue 414,677 279,117 693,794 (7,756) 1,817,984 32,333 
Overdue 1-30 days 47,481 36,196 83,677 (3,019) 202,773 2,274 
Overdue 31-60 days 5,188 4,332 9,520 (638) 31,656 268 
Overdue 61-90 days 3,068 4,951 8,019 (1 ,260) 17,706 223 
Overdue more than 90 

9,760 15,275 25,035 (6,836) 53,570 1,783 days 
Total: 480,174 339,871 820,045 (19,509) 2,123,689 36,881 

31/12/2023 

Natural per- Expected Collateral Unsecured 
sons Legal persons Total credit losses value part of loans 

Not overdue 387,810 218,035 605,845 (7,245) 1,388,032 29,282 
Overdue 1-30 days 54,227 56,609 110,836 (3,798) 241 ,924 6,281 
Overdue 31-60 days 3,389 3,267 6,656 (324) 17,517 306 
Overdue 61-90 days 2,031 1,170 3,201 (485) 6 ,653 380 
Overdue more than 90 

8,114 5,743 13,857 (3,805) 25,740 1,504 days 

Total: 455,571 284,824 740,395 (15,657) 1,679,866 37,753 

The table below provides information on outstanding balances and impairment losses on loans and advances 
issued by the Group: 

Loans and advances from credit institutions 
Loans and advances from other parties and institutions 

To natural persons 
To legal persons 

Total loans granted 

Total allowance for impairment: 
To credit institutions 
To other parties 

To natural persons 
To legal persons 

Total net loans and advances 

2024 
2,761 

820,045 
480 ,174 
339,871 
822,806 

(19,509) 

(19,509) 
(9,154) 

(1 0,355) 
803,297 

2023 
2,487 

740,395 
455,571 
284,824 
742,882 

(15,659) 
(2) 

(15,657) 
(7,736) 
(7,921) 

727,223 
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Changes in expected credit losses during the year are presented below: 

As at 1 January 
Allowance for loan impainnent 

Risk Stage 1 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 2 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 3 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Reversal of the allowance for loan impairment 
Risk Stage 1 loans 

Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 2 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 3 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Uncollectible receivables written off during the year 
As at 31 December 

2024 
(15,659) 

(9,842) 
(1 ,624) 

(92) 
(1 ,532) 
(1 ,209) 

(292) 
(917) 

(7,009) 
(3,733) 
{3,276) 

5,932 
1,493 

497 
996 

2 ,355 
860 

1,495 
2 ,084 
1,330 

754 
60 

(19,509) 

2023 
(13,010) 

(6,657) 
(628) 

(36) 
(592) 

(1 ,308) 
(200) 

(1 ,108) 
(4,721 ) 
(3,266) 
(1,455) 

3,551 
1,012 

477 
535 

1,703 
781 
922 
836 
347 
489 
457 

(15,659) 

As at 31 December 2024, impairment of debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income amounted to EUR 53 thousand (as at 31 December 2023 - EUR 48 thousand). 

As at 31 December 2024, EUR 240 thousand of expected losses were recognised on the Group's off-balance 
sheet commitments (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 372 thousand) under the Group's model for expected credit 
losses: EUR 222 thousand on the loan commitments (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 321 thousand), and EUR 
18 thousand on guarantees (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 51 thousand). 

Additional expected credit losses on off-balance sheet commitments calculated as at 31 December 2024 and 
2023: 

31/12/2024 
Risk Stage 

Segment 1 2 3 Total 
To natural persons 5 3 7 15 
To legal eersons 170 37 18 225 
Total 175 40 25 240 

31/12/2023 
Risk Stage 

Segment 1 2 3 Total 
To natural persons 4 5 15 24 
To legal eersons 140 147 61 348 
Total 144 152 76 372 
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Principles of the Group's expected credit loss model are provided below. 

For the calculation of expected credit losses, all financial instruments are divided into homogeneous groups, tak­
ing into account general characteristics of risk. The Group has distinguished the following groups of financial 
instruments: 

Loans to credit union members. 

Lending positions for other credit institutions. 

Debt securities. 

Funds (deposits) in banks. 

Other financial assets (trade advances, rent advances and others). 

Positions of loans granted to credit union members are grouped into 4 segments of debtors: 

Lending positions for natural non-commercial persons. 

Lending positions for natural commercial persons. 

Lending positions for legal persons, except lending positions for agricultural development. Lending positions 
for legal persons for agricultural development are prescribed to agricultural lending positions; 

Agricultural lending positions. 

Debt securities are classified into two subgroups: 

Debt securities issued by issuers, having investment rating prescribed by ECAI. 

Debt securities issued by other issuers, having speculative rating prescribed by ECAI. 

Debt securities issued by issuer, which due to low risk has ECAI investment rating, are considered as fully guar­
anteed financial instruments and in such case zero value expected credit losses are recognized. 

Funds in bank accounts and deposits are considered as very low risk financial instruments, considering their short 
term and ratings of the banks, holding the funds. For these financial instruments zero value expected credit losses 
are recognized. 

All of the Group's credit data for the period 2009-2023 was used to determine the Group's expected credit loss 
methodology. 

Considering the increase of financial instrument's credit risk after its initial recognition, financial instruments are 
classified into three risk Stages: Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3. 

Risk Stage allocation to debt financial securities, funds in banks and deposits: 

Risk Stage 1 is assigned to: 

Securities that were issued by issuer having investment rating. 

Securities that were issued by issuer having non-investment rating, but being a government of EU coun­
try. 

Funds in bank accounts and deposits. 

Risk Stage 2 is assigned to investment securities, having lower rating than BB+, but higher that CCC+; 

Risk Stage 3 is assigned to investment securities, having lower than CCC+ rating. 

It is considered that applied credit risk to lending position has increased significantly from its initial recognition, if 
increased credit risk indicator is noted to such lending position. In such case, the debtor is moved from risk Stage 
1 to 2. If loss event is recognized, it is considered that debtor has failed to fulfil its obligations and, therefore, is 
transferred from risk Stage 1 or 2 to 3. 
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Increased credit risk indicator is the criteria, objectively proving that financial instrument's default risk has in­
creased significantly from its recognition and it should be assigned to risk Stage 2. The following events are 
considered indicators of increased credit risk: 

Credit overdue - non-payment of periodic credit instalments (principal credit part, interest, commitment fee), 
delay of credit terms of no more than 30 days; 

Deterioration of a borrower's financial position, which is a borrower's credit risk indicator reflecting reliability 
and financial capacity of the borrower, determined by taking into account the criteria for creditworthiness 
assessment; 

Reorganization of credit due to deterioration of the borrower's financial position, which is carried out not more 
than twice and there are no reasonable indications of default. 

Preferential postponements of instalments and discounts, which does not show any reasonable indications 
of default. 
Direct and indirect impact as a result of the economic situation, taking into account uncertainty due to geo­
political situation and inflation; 

Other events: 

Use of funds granted to the borrower not in accordance with the designated purpose stipulated in 
loan agreement, however, the amount is not significant; 

Violation of investment project's and/or business plan's execution terms and conditions, but the re­
sulting risk is not significant to the borrower's cash flows; 

Other event, due to which the borrower should be transferred to a higher risk Stage. 

Loss event - criteria, objectively proving that default of financial obligations is recognized to financial instrument 
and such instrument should be classified as defaulted - assigned to risk Stage 3 The following are considered 
major loss events: 

Credit overdue - non-payment of periodic credit instalments (principal credit part, interest, commitment fee), 
delay of credit terms of no more than 90 days; 

Significant deterioration of borrower's financial position; 

Reorganization of credit due to the borrower's financial position, which is carried for more than second time 
or there are no reasonable indications of default. 

Preferential postponements of instalments and discounts, which show reasonable indications of default. 

Other events: 

Use of funds granted to the borrower not in accordance with the designated purpose stipulated in 
loan agreement and the amount is significant; 

Violation of investment project's and/or business plan's execution terms and conditions and the re­
sulting risk is significant to the borrower's cash flows; 

Revealing of document forging or of other illegal activity, etc.; 

Initiation of bankruptcy against the borrower (initiated by credit union or other creditors); 

Initiation of borrower's reorganization process; 

Deterioration in the value of collateral in terms of loans, if repayment terms of loan being assessed 
directly depend on the value of collateral; 

Legal processes (e.g. credit or other assets are recognized in corresponding balance sheet article 
only after fulfillment of guarantee or individual guarantee liability to the third party, expect cases, if 
such commitment was predetermined in agreement between union and borrower); 

Default on obligations by persons related to the borrower; 

The death of a borrower, if there are no inheritors, or inheritors are not capable of fulfilling financial 
obligations; 

Termination of credit agreement; 

Acquired/realized transactions of increased credit risk; 
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Other loss events due to which the borrower should be recognised as likely to default. 

If a person related to the borrower is transferred to a higher risk Stage, the debtor is also transferred to a higher 
risk Stage, if there are no substantive reasons to determine otherwise. 

Borrower's transfer to a lower risk Stage of one qualitative Stage (e.g. from 2 to 1 or from 3 to 2) is possible if 
there are no reasons to doubt that borrower will fulfil all credit obligations, i.e. during monitoring period (which may 
last from 3 to 12 months given the loss event or increased credit risk indicator) all specific conditions set for the 
borrower are met, implying that borrower will meet its obligations. 

If a person related to the borrower is transferred to a lower risk Stage and the borrower itself meets all require­
ments of a transfer to a lower risk Stage, the borrower is also transferred to a lower risk Stage. Just because a 
credit is forborne/restructured, its credit risk is not considered as automatically lowered. If credit is forborne/re­
structured and, therefore, expected cash flows set in the primary credit agreement change, borrower's credit 
reassessment is done according to existing LCCU's rules of procedures. 

Changes in loans and financial assets during 2024 and 2023 are described in the table below: 

Risk Stage 1 Risk Stage 2 Risk Stage 3 POCI Total 

Loan value ECL Loan value ECL Loan value ECL Loan value ECL Loan value ECL 
As at 1 January 202 473,084 
Loans issued and ne• 

172
,
685 assets recognised 

(1,355) 

(783) 

133,518 (2,994) 

33,966 (586) 

(1,103) 

34,944 

5.218 

(6,933) 

(459) 

10,805 

1.079 

(1,726) 652,351 

(135) 212,948 

(13,008) 

(1,963) 
Loans repaid and de­
recognition of financi; 
assets 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 1 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage 
to Stage 2 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 2 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 3 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 1 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage • 
to Stage 3 
Interests accrued 
Decrease (increase) 
in expected credit 
losses 
Write-offs 
As at 31 December 
2023 

Loans issued and ne• 
assets recognised 
Loans repaid and de­
recognition of financi; 
assets 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 1 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage • 
to Stage 2 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 2 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage: 
to Stage 3 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage : 
to Stage 1 
Transfer between 
Stages: From Stage 
to Stage 3 
Interests accrued 
Decrease (increase) 
in expected credit 
losses 
Write-offs 
As at 31 December 
2024 

(88,103) 

33,932 

(58,351) 

1,516 

(9,100) 

2,024 

(6) 

527,681 

197,215 

(95,422) 

29,996 

(41 ,187) 

1,549 

(17,162) 

2,090 

(197) 

604,563 

(1 ,717) 

(753) 

794 

(2) 

1,278 

372 

(2,166) 

(1,244) 

(1,569) 

(194) 

754 

(1) 

2,312 

(473) 

(2,581) 

(28,602) 

(33,932) 

58,351 

3,041 

(9,999) 

792 

(1) 

157,134 

27,095 

(43,275) 

(29,996) 

41,187 

5,928 

(15,872) 

692 

142,893 

753 

(794) 

(50) 

1,488 

326 

(2,960) 

(503) 

(1,211 ) 

194 

(754) 

(68) 

2,275 

801 

(2,226) 

(10,462) 

(3,041 ) 

9,999 

(1,516) 

9,100 

751 

(25) 

44,968 

4,883 

(10.547) 

(5,928) 

15,872 

(1,549) 

17,162 

1,338 

(135) 

66,064 

4,525 

50 

(1,488) 

2 

(1,278) 

(3,650) 

9 

(9,222) 

(623) 

6,782 

68 

(2,275) 

(2,312) 

(6,072) 

20 

(13,633) 

(374) 

108 

(495) 

11,123 

402 

(4,567) 

93 

(246) 

6,805 

(271) (127,541 ) 

3.675 

373 

448 (527) 

(1,311) 740,906 

(54) 229,595 

327 (153,811 ) 

4,213 

(71) 

40 (578) 

(1,069) 820,325 
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Expected credit losses of financial assets were assessed individually and collectively, as it is described in ac­
counting policies part of these financial statements. 

Analysis of gross value of LCCU financial assets and their impairment according to risk Stages, individual/collec-
tive assessment and segments as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

31/12/2024 

Risk Stages 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI 

Segments Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective 
assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- Total 

ment ment ment ment ment ment ment ment 
Segment of Gross car- 632 378 285 3 776 58 083 2 200 33 347 637 3 214 480 174 

loans to rying 
natural amount 

persons Impairment (3) (272) (40) (539) (229) (7 437) (1) (633) (9 154) 

Segment of Gross car- 112 907 112 459 56 797 24 237 16 994 13 523 1 849 1 105 339 871 
loans to le- rying 

gal per- amount 
sons Impairment (1 946) (360) (1 107) (540) (3 413) (2 554) (348) (87) (10 355) 

Loans from 
Gross car- 280 280 
rying 

credit insti- amount 
tutions 

Im airment 
Gross car- 153 176 2 347 489 156 012 

Debt secu- rying 
rities amount 

Impairment (489) (489) 
Value of 11 560 22 660 2 351 550 56 66 37 243 

Loan com- loan com-
mitments mitments 

(off-bal-
ance sheet) 

Impairment (139) (33) (36) (4) (2) (8) (222) 

31/12/2023 

Risk Stages 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI 

Segments Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective 
assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- assess- Total 

ment ment ment ment ment ment ment ment 
Segment Gross car- 3 467 359 560 7 862 51 733 4 284 24 345 1 736 2 584 455 571 

of loans to rying 
natural amount 

persons Impairment (21) (276) (64) (521 ) (168) (5 858) (125) (703) (7 736) 

Segment Gross car- 81 953 82 701 72 734 24 806 5 958 10 381 4 973 1 318 284 824 
of loans to rying 
legal per- amount 

sons Impairment (1 639) (231) (1 925) (450) (1 115) (2 081) (347) (133) (7 921) 

Loans Gross car- 511 511 
from credit rying 

institu- amount 
tions Impairment (2) (2) 

Gross car- 93 692 2 856 489 97 037 
Debt secu- rying 

rities amount 

Impairment (489) (489) 
Value of 6 187 15 369 4099 1 153 259 27 067 

Loan com- loan com-
mitments mitments 

(off-bal-
ance sheet) 

Impairment (115) (28) (139) (13) (26) (321) 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the breakdown of loans granted by the Group to legal persons by economic 
activity is presented in the table below: 
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2024 2023 
Value Part,% Value Part,% 

Agriculture, forestry and fish-
14,439 4% 14,352 5% eries 

Manufacturing 16,907 5% 15,797 6% 
Construction 80,796 25% 66,055 24% 
Wholesale and retail trade 33,003 10% 28,266 10% 
Transport and storage 10,181 2% 7,024 2% 
Accommodation and food 

12,070 4% 11 ,741 4% service activities 
Real estate operations 101 ,286 31% 86,108 31 % 
Professional, scientific and 

15,056 5% 16,680 6% technical activities 
Administrative and support 

6,279 2% 7,229 3% activities 
Other activity 39,499 12% 23,651 9% 
Total 329,516 100% 276,903 100% 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the breakdown of loans granted by the Group to natural persons by economic 
activity is presented in the table below: 

2024 2023 
Value Part,% Value Part,% 

Agriculture, forestry and fish-
100,227 21% 93,200 21 % eries 

Real estate financing 338,345 72% 326,681 73% 
Consumer credits 24,456 5% 19,917 4% 
Other activity 7,992 2% 8,037 2% 
Total 471,020 100% 447,835 100% 

Impairment losses on loans are individually assessed for loans and advances at amortized cost that bears credit 
risk. All loans and/or commitments made by the Group to a single borrower shall be deemed to have the same 
risk. 

The Group records loss events and calculates impairment losses on loans and advances at amortized cost that 
bears credit risk and makes proposals to the Board of credit union for approval of such impairment losses. The 
Group also assesses the potential decrease in impairment losses recognized at amortized cost that bears credit 
risk. 

Information on impairment of loans and advances is disclosed in accounting policies in the part of significant 
accounting estimates and judgements. 
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Purchased securities are evaluated at the Group limits set by LCCU based on country and entity ratings based 
on Moody's, S&P or Fitch agencies' ratings (using a newer position rating). Positions in securities according to 
ratings set by the aforementioned external rating authorities: 

2024 
Rating Securities at fair value Securities at amor- Securities at fair value 

through other compre- tised cost through profit or loss 
hensive income 

Moody's rating S&P and Fitch 
rating 

Aaa - Aa3 AAA-AA- 2,992 
A1 - A3 A+-A- 70,864 66,409 
Baa1 - Baa3 BBB+ - BBB- 3,427 9,973 
Ba1 - Ba3 BB+ - 88- 493 1,239 
81 - 83 B+ - 8-
Without rating 61 5 5,087 
Total 74 784 81 228 5 087 

2023 
Rating Securities at fair value Securities at amor- Securities at fair value 

through other compre- tised cost through profit or loss 
hensive income 

Moody's rating S&P and Fitch 
rating 

Aaa -Aa3 AAA-AA- 500 2,992 
A1 - A3 A+-A- 23,330 52,475 
Baa1 - Baa3 888+ - BBB- 4,726 10,631 
Ba1 - Ba3 BB+ - BB- 461 1,221 
81 - 83 B+- 8-
Without rating 201 500 5,351 
Total 29,218 67,819 5,351 

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group kept all funds in correspondent accounts of high-rated (from AAA­
to BBB-) banks or branches of such banks in Lithuania. 

Liquidity risk 

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to the possible risk of mismatches in cash flows. The 
purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure that the Group will be able to meet its obligations in full. The 
key elements of liquidity risk management include management's reporting system, control over liquidity manage­
ment, diversification of financing sources, planning of expected commitments, formation of liquidity buffers, cal­
culations of projected cash receipts/payments and net funding gap. The Group's liquidity risk management is 
divided into current, short-term, medium-term and strategic liquidity risk management. The liquidity risk is man­
aged by complying with the liquidity coverage ratio (hereinafter "LCR") as well as internal liquidity ratios, preparing 
monthly cash flow reports, performing stress testing of liquidity risk, assessing liquidity buffers, counterbalancing 
capacity, net funding gap, etc. 

In the end of each operation day at LCCU/credit union a responsible employee is required to check the compliance 
with the liquidity ratio and ensure that all cash flows have been matched, cash payments and receipts and to 
assess scheduled future cash flows. When internal ratios established by LCCU/credit union are achieved, man­
agement of LCCU/credit union should be notified. At least once per month, following the established procedure 
depending on the size of the liquidity ratio, management analyses and assesses information as to the matching 
of cash flows and compliance with the liquidity ratio. When decisions are made in relation to granting a loan or 
accepting a large deposit, the management of LCCU/credit union assess how this would affect the cash flows and 
compliance with the liquidity ratio. 

A part of the Group's investments in securities are held to collect cash flows and sell (investment securities, ac­
counted at fair value through other comprehensive income), therefore, in case of any possible interruptions in cash 
flows or liquidity, these investments may be sold immediately. In the event of any actual or anticipated interruptions 
in LCCU /credit union's liquidity, LCCU/credit union uses the available liquidity sources, considering the costs of their 
utilization, and at the same time suspends the process of lending and investing. 
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Analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by maturity as at 31 December 2024 is as follows: 

Maturity 
On de- 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 5-10 > 10 unde-

2024 mand 3 months months months 
Assets 

years years years years fined Total 

Cash and cash equiva-
rents held with central 114,702 114,702 
bank 

Securities 3,621 1,588 21 ,511 86,347 37,348 5,597 5,087 161,099 

Loans and advances 
2,481 280 2,761 from credit institu1ions 

Loans and advances 
10,264 13,550 47,183 125,141 78,368 183,112 338,912 4,006 800,536 from other parties 

Total assets 117,183 13,885 15,138 68,694 211,488 115,716 188,989 338,912 9,093 1,079,098 

Liabilities, capital and reserves 
Amounts due to credit 
and other financial in- 21 ,160 39,215 27,733 
stitutions 

15,428 21,459 23,363 148,358 

Deposits 206,622 124,153 132,692 244,494 124,573 13,103 1,138 267 101 847,143 
Subordinated loans 42 2,005 5,852 7,899 
Other liabilities, provi-
sions and deferred 1,998 2,438 145 1,470 526 434 523 7,534 
taxes 
Capital and reserves 1,300 3,979 81 ,950 87 229 
Total liabilities, capi- 229,780 165,848 161,870 259,922 151,481 38,997 7,424 267 82,574 1,098,163 tal and reserves 
Difference between 
assets and liabilities, (112,597) (151,963) (146,732) (191,228) 
capital and reserves 

60,007 76,719 181,565 338,645 (73,481) (19,065) 

Off-balance sheet 
37,243 764 38,007 commitments 

The table below provides analysis of LCCU Group's assets and liabilities by maturity in 2023: 

On de- 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 
Maturity 

5-10 > 10 unde-
2023 mand 3 months months months 

Assets 
years years years years fined Total 

Cash and cash equiva-
lents held with central 13,177 13,177 
bank 

Securities 8,652 14,932 10,773 40,557 21 ,252 871 5,351 102,388 

Loans and advances 
1,976 509 2,485 from credit institu1ions 

Loans and advances 
7,155 9,772 32,919 118,341 72,038 168,583 314,601 1,329 724,738 from other parties 

Total assets 15,153 15,807 24,704 43,692 158,898 93,290 169,454 315,110 6,680 842,788 

Liabilities, capital and reserves 
Amounts due to credit 
and other financial insti- 3,898 20,129 15,019 21 ,354 1,005 15,496 76,901 
tutions 

Deposits 192,891 99,667 103,811 190,258 90,622 14,559 770 325 692,903 

Subordinated loans 49 2,900 2,456 5,405 
Other liabilities, provi-
sions and deferred 1,718 3,376 326 1,712 509 480 687 8,808 
taxes 
Capital and reserves 1,300 2,600 2,600 1,379 68,519 76 398 
Total liabilities, capital 198,507 123,221 120,456 211,612 95,939 36,064 5,085 325 69,206 860,415 and reserves 
Difference between 
assets and liabilities, (183,354) (107,414) (95,752) (167,920) 
capital and reserves 

62,959 57,226 164,369 314,785 (62,526) (17,627) 

Off-balance sheet 
27,067 837 27,904 commitments 
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The LCR is intended to determine the short-term resilience of the liquidity risk of the Group (minimal required 
value of the ratio is not lower than 100%). This ratio requires that the Group has risk- free liquid assets that can 
be easily liquidated in the market, to make necessary payments, excluding received payments, during the 30-day 
period of crisis without central bank support. The LCR is calculated as the ratio of liquidity buffer to cash flow. 
Values of liquidity buffer and cash flow are recalculated by applying adjustment factor to the value, as defined in 
the EU Regulations. As at 31 December 2024, LCR of the Group was 298% (as at 31 December 2023, 204%) 

The structure of LCCU Group's financial liabilities based on the remaining period at the date of financial state-
ments to the contractual maturity date as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is presented below. The amounts 
reported represent contractual undiscounted cash flows: 

On de- 1-3 ~ 6-12 1-3 3-5 5-10 > 10 Maturity 
unde- Total mand months months months years years years years fined 

31/12/2024 
Amounts due to credit 
and other finance in- 21,160 39,404 28,068 15,871 22,824 4,012 19,351 150,690 
stitutions 

Deposits 206,622 124,712 134,659 251 ,792 132,788 15,107 1,413 357 101 867,551 

Subordinated loans 99 71 272 1,082 2,867 6,745 11,136 
Other financial liabili-

1,670 4 1,470 526 434 4,104 ties 

Total financial liabili- 227,782 165,885 162,798 267,939 
ties 

158,164 22,512 8,592 357 19,452 1,033,481 

On de- 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 5-10 > 10 
Maturity 

unde- Total mand months months months years years years years fined 
31/12/2023 
Amounts due to credit 
and other finance in- 3,898 20,166 15,202 21 ,882 1,041 2,012 2,004 11,479 77,684 
stitutions 

Deposits 192,891 99,935 105,099 195,558 95,532 16,469 867 409 40 706,800 

Subordinated loans 42 84 167 666 2,019 2,471 5,449 
Other financial liabili-

2,342 10 1,712 509 480 5,053 ties 

Total financial liabili- 196,789 122,485 120,385 217,617 98,951 21 ,009 5,822 409 11,519 794,986 
ties 

Market risk 

Market risk assessment 

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which means the risk to incur losses due to unfavourable fluctuations 
in market variables such as interest rates (interest rate risk) and foreign exchange rates (foreign currency risk), debt 
and equity securities. The Group assesses its exposure to market risk, which means the risk that the fair value of 
future cash flows from financial instruments may change as a result of changes in market prices. 

Possible changes in market risk are determined by taking into account the effects of its component parts, i.e. interest 
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Market risk management and assessment uses risk management policies/pro­
cedures approved by LCCU's Board, which provide risk assessment indicators and limits, which are regularly re­
ported to the LCCU's Board and Supervisory Board. 

Interest rate risk is managed by the difference between assets and liabilities whose interest rates are sensitive to 
changes in market interest rates and by setting interest rate risk limits. LCCU/credit unions assess the impact of 
interest rate fluctuations on net interest income. 

The risk of credit union investment in debt securities is managed by limiting the proportion of the balance sheet 
assets, modified financial maturity, restrictions based on the issuer's ratings, scenario analysis and determination 
of the maximum potential loss due to unfavourable interest rate changes. 
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INTEREST RA TE RISK 

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that, in the future, cash flows from financial instruments may fluctuate due 
to changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk of financial instruments is the risk that the fair 
value of financial instruments may change in the future due to changes in market interest rates. The Group man­
ages interest rate risk by reviewing quarterly the interest rate gap report and the limits and rates of execution of 
interest rate risk management (minimum weighted average interest rate on loans granted, maximum weighted 
average interest rate on term deposits, end-of-period limits) and periodic review of interest rates on loans and 
deposits, fixed-rate or floating-rate loan decisions, and decisions concerning LCCU/credit union asset and liability 
structure. Interest rate risk is managed by applying a combination of variable and fixed interest rates to LCCU and 
the Group's loan and deposit transactions. LCCU and the Group applies the UNIBOR index to determine the 
interest rate on term deposits and working capital loans, which is determined by calculating the average cost of 
the credit union resources of LCCU's system. The internal rating of a credit union is also taken into account when 
determining the interest rates on new loans. 

The table below summarizes the interest rate risk as of 31 December 2024. The table shows the assets and 
liabilities of the Group, broken down by the date of the contractual interest rate review or maturity date: 

Up to 1 1-3 3-6 S-12 1-3 >3 Maturity un-
2024 month months months months years years defined Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 114,702 114,702 
held with central bank 

Securities 1,996 1,626 1,588 21 ,511 86,347 42,944 5,087 161,099 

Loans and advances from 280 2,481 2,761 

credit institutions 

Loans and advances from 
7,669 2,454 13,614 47,173 125,132 600,525 3,969 800,536 

other parties 
Property, plant and equipment, 1,776 8,982 10,758 
intangible assets and right-of-
use assets 
Investment property 2,788 2,788 

Assets held for sale 2,465 2,465 

Other assets and deferred tax 
3,054 3,054 

asset 

Total assets 9,665 4,080 15,202 68,684 213,255 643,749 143,528 1,098,163 

Liabilities and reserves 

Amounts due to credit and 
12,715 26,500 27,733 15,428 21,459 23,363 21 . 160 148,358 

other financial institutions 

Deposits from other parties 43,538 80,615 132,691 244,493 124,573 14,619 206,614 847,143 

Subordinated loans 7,899 7,899 

Other liabilities 2,457 145 1,462 960 2,510 7,534 

Capital and reserves 1,300 3,979 81 ,950 87,229 

Total liabilities and reserves 56,253 109,572 161,869 259,921 151,473 46,841 312,234 1,098,163 

Balance difference due to in-
(46,588) (105,492) (146,667) (191 237) 61,782 596,908 (168,706) 

terest sensitivity 

51 page of 69 



LITHUANIAN CENTRAL CREDIT UNION GROUP'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

(All amounts in EUR thousand unless stated otherwise) 

The table below shows the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023, categorized by the ear­
lier of contractual repricing or redemption (maturity) dates: 

2023 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents held 
with central bank 
Securities 

Loans and advances from credit in­
stitutions 

Loans and advances from other 
parties 
Property, plant and equipment, in­
tangible assets and right-of-use as­
sets 

Investment property 

Other assets and deferred tax asset 

Total assets 

Liabilities and reserves 

Amounts due to credit and other fi­
nancial institutions 
Deposits from other parties 
Subordinated loans 
Other liabilities 
Capital and reserves 

Total liabilities and reserves 

Balance difference due to inter­
est sensitivity 

Up to 1 1-3 3-6 6-12 
month months months months 

6,126 995 13,421 9,985 

78,869 232,837 256,236 121,386 

84,995 233,832 269,657 131,371 

1-3 
years 

38,790 

21 ,504 

2,189 

62,483 

20,129 15,018 21 ,354 1,005 

32,378 72,144 102,922 139,036 133,207 

2,189 
1,300 2,600 

32,378 92,273 119,240 160,390 139,001 

52,617 141,559 150,417 (29,019) (76,518) 

>3 
years 

20,154 

509 

13,906 

34,569 

15,496 

20,328 
5,405 

2,679 

43,908 

(9,339) 

Maturity un­
defined 

13,177 

12,917 

1,976 

7,895 

3,988 

3,555 

43,508 

3,899 

192,888 

6,619 
69,819 

273,225 

(229,717) 

Total 

13,177 

102,388 

2,485 

724,738 

10,084 

3,988 

3,555 

860,415 

76,901 

692,903 
5,405 
8,808 

76,398 

860,415 

The table below summarizes the Group's assets and liabilities by type of interest as at 31 December 2024: 
2024 Variable interest 

Assets 
Cash and cash equiva­
lents held with central 
bank 
Securities 
Loans and advances 
from credit institutions 
Loans and advances 
from other parties 
Property, plant and 
equipment and right-of­
use asset 
Investment property 

Assets held for sale 

Other assets and de­
ferred tax asset 
Total assets 
Liabilities and reserves 
Amounts due to credit 
and other financial insti­
tutions 
Deposits from other par­
ties 
Subordinated loans 
Other liabilities and provi­
sions 
Capital and reserves 
Total liabilities and re­
serves 
Balance sheet differ­
ence 

Fixed interest 

161,099 

280 

55,254 

216,633 

103,835 

640,521 

457 

6,579 

751 ,392 

(534,759) 

Euribor 

110,111 

625,756 

735,867 

1,167 

7,442 

8,609 

727,258 

Unibor 

98,043 

98,043 

98,043 

Other interest Non-interest-
Total rate bases* bearing 

21 ,483 

21,483 

21,483 

4,591 114,702 

161,099 

2,481 2,761 

800,536 

10,758 10,758 

2,788 2,788 

2,465 2,465 

3,054 3,054 
26,137 1,098,163 

43,356 148,358 

206,622 847,143 

7,534 

80,650 

7,899 

7,534 

87,229 

338,162 1,098,163 

(312,025) 
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The Group's assets and liabilities by type of interest as at 31 December 2023: 

2023 Variable interest 
Fixed inter- Non-interest-

est Other interest bearing 
Total 

Euribor Unibor 
rate bases• 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents held 

10,363 2,814 13,177 
with central bank 
Securities 102,388 102,388 

Loans and advances from credit 
509 1,976 2,485 

institutions 
Loans and advances from other 

56,590 540,531 106,496 21 ,121 724,738 parties 
Property, plant and equipment 10,084 10,084 
and right-of-use asset 
Investment property 3,988 3,988 
Other assets and deferred tax 

3,555 3,555 
asset 
Total assets 159,487 550,894 106,496 21,121 22,417 860,415 
Liabilities and reserves 
Amounts due to credit and other 

57,507 1,425 17,969 76,901 
financial institutions 
Deposits from other parties 500,012 192,891 692,903 
Subordinated loans 1,456 3,949 5,405 
Other liabilities and provisions 8,808 8,808 
Capital and reserves 6,579 69,819 76,398 
Total liabilities and reserves 565,554 5,374 289,487 860,415 
Balance sheet difference (406,067) 545,520 106,496 21,121 (267,070) 

* Other interest rate bases: TIKKU, KKL, POKU, KUBOR, VKU-EUR. 

The Group performs worst-case scenario testing for credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, concentration risk and 
operational risk. The purpose of worst-case scenario testing is to assess whether the Group has sufficient capi­
tal to cover the extraordinary losses that the Group might incur in the event of unfavourable conditions, and to 
prepare the Group's business continuity plan. Standard, possible, and worst-case scenarios are used to esti­
mate the losses that may occur as a result of the above risks. The results of the stress tests shall be submitted 
to LCCU Board as required , but at least once a year. 

The table below summarises the effect of changes in interest rate risk by 1 % on net interest income if all interest 
rate fluctuation sensitive asset and liabilities' items (up to 1 year) in the balance sheet were subject to 1 % 
higher/lower interest rate): 

1 % increase in interest rate 

1 % decrease in interest rate 

Operational risk 

As at 31 December 2024 
Impact on net interest income 

(4,900) 

4,900 

As at 31 December 2023 
Impact on net interest income 

3,156 

(3,156) 

Operational risk is defined as the risk that LCCU Group will incur loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal 
processes, personnel mistakes and/or illegal actions, IT systems failures or from impact of external events. Op­
erational risk also includes legal and reputational, compliance, money laundering and terrorist financing, infor­
mation and communication technology security and other risks, unless assessed separately, as well as disasters 
and crises in which Group's assets are at risk. 

The primary objective of operational risk assessment and management is to ensure that the management and 
assessment of the operational risk assumed by LCCU Group is properly organised, effective, continuous and 
guarantees the safe and stable operation of LCCU Group. At least once each calendar year (during LCCU's self­
assessment, operational risk assessment in the internal audit or by the decision of the head of administration of 
LCCU), the LCCU Group's processes, the operations of the structural units, the products (services) are assessed 
and the emergence of any new events that may pose a significant operational risk to LCCU Group is identified. 
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ADEQUACY 

The Group's main objectives when managing capital are as follows: 

to ensure compliance with and control of prudential ratios; 

to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern - business stability guarantee; 

growing capital base enables the Group to increase its assets and maximum exposure to a single bor­
rower. 

Three capital adequacy ratios are used: Tier 1 capital ratio, additional Tier 1 capital ratio, and the total capital 
ratio. The ratios are calculated under the requirements of the Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRDIV) and the 
Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR), which is directly applied. Credit, market, operational and currency risks 
are assessed when calculating capital adequacy. The Group assesses credit risk using a standard risk assess­
ment approach; operational risk is measured using a basic indicator approach. Information regarding the compli­
ance with capital adequacy ratio and the use of capital is submitted to the supervising authority on a quarterly 
basis. The Group has implemented the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). These require­
ments represent additional requirements (Tier 2) supplementing general (Tier 1) capital adequacy calculation 
requirements. Based on the ICAAP, the Group performs a thorough analysis, which includes identification of risks, 
assessment of risk management and assessment of internal required capital. 

The capital of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 was made up of Tier I and Tier II capital. Tier 1 capital 
includes equity, reserves and other ancillary capital and reserves, part of the revaluation reserve for financial 
assets and retained earnings and other comprehensive income. The following is deducted from Tier 1 capital: 
intangible assets, losses of the previous periods, deferred tax assets. The Tier 2 capital consists of subordinated 
loans that meet the established requirements. Tier 2 capital may not exceed 1/3 of Tier 1 capital when calculating 
capital adequacy ratios. The capital is disclosed after the current earnings. The capital before current earnings 
was 14.66% in 2024 (13.78% in 2023). 

Capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows: 

2024 2023 
Tier 1 capital 
Share capital 52,879 53,281 
Reserve capital 31,712 20,197 
Part of revaluation reserve of financial assets 265 (880) 
Intangible assets (430) (514) 
Effect of insufficient non-performing loans coverage (741) (893) 
Result for the reporting period 10,160 12,901 
Retained earnings (deficit) of the previous reporting periods (8,353) (9,781 ) 
Deferred tax asset (592) (867) 
Total Tier 1 capital 84,900 73,444 
Tier 2 capital 7,392 5,180 
Total capital base 92,292 78,624 

Required capital for credit risk, impairment risk of accounts 
478,315 411,140 receivable 

Required capital for operational risk 81,946 65,835 
Total required capital 560,261 476,975 

Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio, % 15.15% 15.40% 
Tier 1 and additional Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio, % 15.15% 15.40% 
Total capital adequacy ratio,% 16.47% 16.48% 

The capital conservation buffer which came into effect on 30 June 2015 in Lithuania (2.5%) increased the Tier 1 
common equity capital ratio from 4.5% to 7%, and the total capital ratio from 8% to 10.5%. On 5 October 2022, 
the Board of the Bank of Lithuania decided to increase the countercyclical capital buffer rate to 1 % from 1 October 
2023, bringing it back to pre-pandemic Stages. As at 31 December 2024, the countercyclical capital buffer re­
quirement was set at 1 %, and, as at 31 December 2023, the countercyclical capital buffer requirement was set at 
1%. 
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Based on the results of the LCCU Group and supervisory review and assessment conducted by the Bank of 
Lithuania, the additional (Pillar II) capital adequacy ratio of 1.61 % was set for the Group in January 2023 (in prior 
years, the additional rate was set at 1.34%). From 1 July 2022, credit institution with mortgage loan portfolios 
exceeding a materiality threshold of EUR 50 million are subject to additional capital buffer of 2% for mortgage 
loan portfolio. Consequently, the sectoral systemic risk buffer is applied to the Group, which amounted to 0.5% 
as at 31 December 2023, and to 0.45% as at 31 December 2024. Considering all the combined capital buffer 
requirements in force, the Group had to comply with the following individual minimum own funds requirements on 
31 December 2024 and 2023: Tier 1 common equity capital ratio of 9.35% (2023: 9.4%), Tier 1 capital ratio of 
11.16% (2023: 11 .21%) and total capital ratio of 13.56% (2023: 13.61%). The recommended additional Tier 2 
capital requirement of 0.5% was also applied as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The Group was in compliance 
with the capital adequacy ratio in 2024 and 2023. 
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OTHER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 6. NET INTEREST INCOME 

Interest income calculated using the effec­
tive interest method: 
On loans to other parties: 

To natural persons 
To legal persons 

Balances with central banks 

On securities at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

On securities at amortized cost 

Default interest income 

Total interest income 

Interest expenses calculated using the ef­
fective interest method: 
On deposits from credit unions 
Deposits from other parties: 

Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Negative interest expenses on funds held 
in central bank 
For subordinated loans received 
For other loans and funds received 

Interest paid on finance lease 

Total interest expenses 

Net interest income 

2024 

68,968 
41 ,556 
27,412 

1,513 

1,106 

1,681 

1,345 

74,613 

3,109 
20,875 
19,634 

1,241 

18 

591 

1,092 

44 

25,729 

48,884 

NOTE 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (EXPENSES) 

2024 
Fee and commission income: 

On money transfers 

On operations with payment cards 

On utility bills 

On other service and commission income 

Total fee and commission income 

Fee and commission expenses: 

On money transfers 

On operations with payment cards 

Charged by financial brokerage compa-
nies 

Other fee and commission expenses 

Total fee and commission expenses 

Net fee and commission income (ex­
penses) 

923 

433 

63 

175 

1,594 

393 

725 

184 

80 

1,382 

212 

2023 

56,831 
35,535 
21 ,296 

566 

321 

1,216 

767 

59,701 

344 
11,531 
11 ,033 

498 

586 

313 
852 

55 

13,681 

46,020 

2023 

901 

409 

65 

148 

1,523 

365 

757 

337 

97 

1,556 

(33) 
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NOTE 8. OTHER INCOME 

Net gain on derecognition of financial assets 

POCI revaluation income 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and in­
vestment property 

Income from loans written off 
Rent of premises, uncompensated use 

Enrolment fees 

Other income 

Total other income 

2024 

8 

183 

191 

428 

113 

49 

636 

1,608 

2023 

10 

287 

567 

428 

106 

49 

469 

1,916 

The Group provides non-financial services consisting mainly of information systems and technology related ser­
vices. 

NOTE 9. NET RESULT ON OPERATIONS WITH SECURITIES 

2024 2023 

Realized gain on operations with securities at fair value 11 46 
through other comprehensive income 
Realized gain on operations with securities at fair value 

159 8 through profit or loss 

Realized loss on operations with securities at fair value (8) ( 11) through other comprehensive income 
Unrealized gain on operations with securities at fair 

63 493 value through profit or loss 

Net result on operations with securities 225 536 

NOTE 10. NET RESULT FROM FOREIGN CURRENCY OPERATIONS 

2024 2023 
Realised gain on foreign currency operations 11 11 
Realised loss on foreign currency operations (3) (6) 
Unrealized gain on foreign currency operations 6 19 
Unrealized loss on foreign currency operations (6) (17) 

Net profit on foreign currency operations 8 7 

NOTE 11. LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS IMPAIRMENT (LOSS) REVERSAL 

2024 2023 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment of loans and other 

(3,859) (2,648) advances 
Loans written off during the period (578) (527) 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment of securities (4) (31) 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment other financial as-

(56) (38) sets 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment of other assets 132 (239) 

(Impairment) reversal of impainnent of loans and 
(4,365) (3,483) other assets 
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NOTE 12. CHANGE IN PROVISIONS 

Change in provisions for off-balance sheet commit­
ments 
Change in provisions for employee benefits 

Provision charges 

NOTE 13. INCOME TAX 

Current income tax 

Changes in deferred income tax 

Total income tax (benefit) expense 

Movements in deferred tax asset (liability) account 

Balance as at 1 January 2023 

Deferred tax (through other comprehensive income) 
Income (expenses) through profit or loss 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 

Deferred tax (through other comprehensive income) 
Income (expenses) through profit or loss 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 

NOTE 14. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Premises maintenance and utilities 
Legal and consultation expenses 
Financial audit expenses* 
Transportation, postal and communication expenses 
Contributions to deposit and investment insurance 
Advertising and marketing expenses 
Remuneration and other benefits to the bodies of credit 
unions for attending meetings 
Stationery supplies 
Equipment maintenance 
Membership fees 
Insurance expenses 
Training expenses 
Representation expenses 
Charity and support 
Taxes (other than income tax) 
Other expenses 

Total 

2024 

(132) 

32 

(100) 

2024 
1029 
216 

1 245 

867 

325 
(207) 

1,025 

(217) 
(216) 

592 

2024 
1,014 

782 
363 

1,252 
1,356 
1,523 

774 

360 
401 
127 
209 
253 
172 
596 
552 

1,142 

10,876 

2023 

242 

63 

305 

2023 
1,454 

6 

1 460 

2023 
863 
771 
182 

1,272 
837 

1,147 

743 

345 
398 
124 
160 
244 
170 
508 
537 

1,962 

10,263 

Premises maintenance and utility expenses mainly consist of payments to utility service providers. 

• of which, as at 31 December 2024, EUR 1 thousand were accrued valuation expenses (as at 31 December 
2023, EUR 3 thousand). 
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NOTE 15. CASH ON HAND AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK 

2024 2023 
Cash on hand 4,591 2,814 
Balances with the central bank 110, 111 10,363 

of which funds from IL TE 
4,819 1,989 UAB 

Total 114,702 13,177 

The correspondent account in EUR generates 3.0% interest charged by the European Central Bank (4.0% as at 
31 December 2023). The current and future funds held in the current account and related to IL TE UAB instru­
ments, the balance of which, as at 31 December 2024, was EUR 4,819 thousand (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 
1,989 thousand), are pledged to IL TE UAB for the purpose of securing repayment of the funds received, and 
these funds will have to be transferred to the aforementioned body to fulfil the contractual obligations (see also 
Note 24). 

NOTE 16. LOANS AND ADVANCES FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS 

Balances in correspondent accounts with banks 
Loans to credit unions 

Total 

2024 
2,481 

280 

2,761 

2023 
1,976 

509 

2,485 

Information on impairment of loans and advances is disclosed in the significant accounting estimates and judge­
ments of the Accounting Principles and in the Credit Risk section of Financial Risk Management. 

NOTE 17. LOANS AND ADVANCES FROM OTHER PARTIES 

Loans to natural persons 
Loans to legal persons 

Total 

2024 
471,020 
329,516 

800,536 

2023 
447,835 
276,903 

724,738 

Information on impairment of loans and advances is disclosed in the significant accounting estimates and judge­
ments of the Accounting Principles and in the Credit Risk section of Financial Risk Management. 
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NOTE 18. SECURITIES 

Securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Securities at amortised cost 
Securities at fair value through profit or loss 

Total 

2024 

74,784 

81 ,228 
5,087 

161,099 
Securities at fair value through other comprehensive income consist of securities of the following issuers: 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania 

Corporate (debt) securities of the Republic of Lithuania 

(Debi) securities of the institutions of the Republic of Lithuania 

Government (debt) securities of the EU countries 

(Debi) securities of the Government of the Republic of Latvia 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Romania 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Federal Republic of Germany 

Corporate (debt) securities of the EU countries 

(Debt) securities of companies of the Republic of Latvia 

(Debt) securities of the institutions of the EU countries 

(Debt) securities of the institutions of the Republic of Estonia 
Total 

Securities at amortized cost consist of investment securities of the following issuers: 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania 

Corporate (debt) securities of the Republic of Lithuania 

(Debt) securities of the institutions of the Republic of Lithuania 

Government (debt) securities of the EU countries 

(Debi) securities of the Government of the Republic of Bulgaria (debt) 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Hungary 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Latvia 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Romania 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Federal Republic of Germany 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of France 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Estonia 

(Debt) securities of the Government of the Republic of Poland 

Corporate (debt) securities of the EU countries 

(Debt) securities of companies of the Republic of Latvia 

(Debt) securities of the institutions of the EU countries 

Securities of the institutions of the Republic of Latvia (debt) 

(Debi) securities of the institutions of the Republic of Estonia 
Total 

Securities at fair value through profit or loss consist of investment securities of the following countries: 

Corporate securities of the Republic of Lithuania (collective investment undertakings) 

Total 

2024 
66,830 

973 

505 

3,598 

1,156 

2,442 

555 

555 

2,323 

2,323 

74,784 

2024 

60,434 

3,642 

12,977 
100 

122 

2,891 

5,084 

2,992 

1,588 

200 

401 

401 

3,774 

2,479 

1,295 

81,228 

2024 

5,087 

5,087 

2023 

29,218 

67,819 
5,351 

102,388 

2023 
20,664 

930 

1,540 

4,678 

2,156 

2,022 

500 

510 

510 

896 

896 

29,218 

2023 

49,401 

3,510 

2,146 

9,003 
808 

122 

3,074 
2,007 

2,992 

400 

400 

3,359 

2,587 

772 

67,819 

2023 

5,351 

5,351 

As at 31 December 2024, the effective interest rates on securities vary from -0.27% to 8.00% and are fixed (2023: 
varied from -0.39% to 15.0%). As at 31 December 2024, the Group's pledged securities amounted to EUR 4,717 
thousand (2023: EUR 4,605 thousand) , of which EUR 1,335 thousand (2023: EUR 1,218 thousand) were meas­
ured at fair value through other comprehensive income and EUR 3,382 thousand at amortized cost (2023: EUR 
3,387 thousand). These securities were pledged to the Central Bank of Lithuania as collateral for monetary policy 
operations. As a result of these ongoing monetary policy operations, the amount of the available but undrawn 
credit line amounted to EUR 4 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: EUR 4 million). The unused credit line 
includes pledged securities with different enforcement periods as each of them has its own maturity date. 
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NOTE 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

Right-of-use assets 

Other assets Land Buildings 
Buildings and 

premises Cars 
Total right-of­

use assets TOTAL 
As at 1 January 2023 

Acquisition cost 

Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Reporting year 2023 

Net book value 
Acquisitions/additions to 
contracts 

Capitalisation of value 
Changes contracts condi­
tions 
Reclassified from/to other 
assets 
Transfer from/to other as­
sets (accumulated depre­
ciation) 
Write-offs/disposals/termi­
nations of contracts 
Depreciation of assets 
written-off/disposed/termi­
nated contracts 

Depreciation charge 

Net book value 

As at 31 December 2023 

Acquisition cost 

Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Reporting year 2024 
Net book value 

Acquisitions/additions to 
contracts 

Capitalisation of value 
Changes contracts condi­
tions 
Reclassification from/to in­
vestment property (acqui­
sition cost) 
Reclassified from/to other 
assets (accumulated de­
preciation) 
Write-offs/disposals/termi­
nations of contracts 
Depreciation of assets 
written-off/disposed/termi­
nated contracts 
Depreciation charge 

Net book value 

As at 31 December 2024 

Acquisition cost 

Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

4,638 

(3,198) 

1,440 

1,440 

1,205 

(2) 

(339) 

293 

(616) 

1,981 

5,504 

(3,523) 

1,981 

1,981 

882 

(444) 

659 

(732) 

2,346 

5,942 

(3,596) 

2,346 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

90 

8,589 

(2,667) 

5,922 

5,922 

86 

(44) 

23 

(462) 

132 

(347) 

5,310 

8,169 

(2,859) 

5,310 

5,310 

1,150 

46 

(483) 

311 

(7) 

131 

(342) 

6,116 

8,875 

(2,759) 

6,116 

2,070 

(1 ,247) 

823 

823 

434 

1,185 

(17) 

(484) 

1,942 

3,672 

(1 ,730) 

1,942 

1,942 

306 

17 

(282) 

10 

(556) 

1,437 

3,713 

(2,276) 

1,437 

292 

(151) 

141 

141 

62 

175 

(15) 

(117) 

247 

514 

(267) 

247 

247 

60 

222 

(58) 

2 

(134) 

339 

738 

(399) 

339 

2,362 

(1 ,398) 

964 

964 

496 

1,360 

(32) 

2 

(601) 

2,189 

4,186 

(1 ,997) 

2,189 

2,189 

366 

239 

(340) 

12 

(690) 

1,776 

4,451 

(2,675) 

1,776 

Depreciation of the Group non-current assets during 2024 amounted to EUR 1,412 thousand (EUR 1,564 thou­
sand during 2023), of which right-of-use assets - EUR 690 thousand (EUR 601 thousand during 2023). The 
Group did not have any pledged property, plant and equipment in either 2024 or 2023. The part of the Group's 
property plant and equipment with acquisition cost of EUR 2,275 thousand as at 31 December 2024 (EUR 2,458 
thousand as at 31 December 2023) was fully amortized but still used in the Group's activities. 

The table below shows the interest-bearing financial liability related to right of use assets presented in the state­
ment of financial position: 
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15,679 

(7,263) 

8,416 

8,416 

1,787 

1,360 

(44) 

21 

(833) 

427 

(1,564) 

9,570 

17,949 

(8,379) 

9,570 

9,570 

2,398 

46 

239 

(483) 

311 

(791) 

802 

(1,764) 

10,328 

19,358 

(9,030) 

10,328 
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Reporting year 2023 
Additions 
Interest expenses 
Rent expenses 
Balance as at 31 December 2023 

Reporting year 2024 
Additions 
Interest expenses 
Rent expenses 
Balance as at 31 December 2024 

1,826 
(54) 

(747) 
2108 

277 
(44) 

(666) 
1 675 

The maturity structure of interest-bearing financial liabilities related to right-of-use assets is presented in the ta­
ble of maturity structure of the Group's assets and liabilities. 

NOTE 20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

LCCU's internally 
Other intangible developed soft-

assets ware Total 
As at 1 January 2023 
Acquisition cost 1,037 1,612 2,649 
Accumulated amortisation (741) {1 ,290) {2,031) 
Net book value 296 322 618 
Reporting year 2023 
Net book value 296 322 618 
Additions 38 94 132 
Write-offs (12) (12) 
Amortisation of asset written-
off 12 12 
Amortisation charge (134) (102) (236) 
Net book value 200 314 514 
As at 31 December 2023 
Acquisition cost 1,063 1,706 2,769 
Accumulated amortisation (863) {1 ,392) {2,255) 
Net book value 200 314 514 
Reporting year 2024 
Net book value 200 314 514 
Additions 20 149 169 
Write-offs (32) 
Amortisation of asset written-

(8) (40) 

off 32 8 32 
Amortisation charge (105) (140) (245) 
Net book value 115 315 430 
As at 31 December 2024 
Acquisition cost 1,051 1,847 2,898 
Accumulated amortisation (936) {1 ,532) (2,468) 
Net book value 115 315 430 

LCCU is engaged in the development of computer software "i-Kubas". In 2024, employee remuneration expenses 
incurred in relation to the development of this computer software amounted to EUR 149 thousand (2023: EUR 94 
thousand) and were recognised as intangible assets of LCCU. As at 31 December 2024, the net book amount of 
developed computer software brought into use was EUR 308 thousand and the net book amount of computer 
software not yet brought into use was EUR 1 thousand (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 83 thousand and EUR 11 
thousand, respectively). The amortisation charge of the Group's intangible assets amounted to EUR 245 thousand 
in 2024 (EUR 236 thousand in 2023). All costs are included in operating expenses. The part of the Group's intan­
gible assets with acquisition cost of EUR 1,924 thousand as at 31 December 2024 (EUR 1,785 thousand as at 31 
December 2023) was fully amortized but still used in the Group's activities. 
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NOTE 21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Other investment 
Foreclosed assets eroperty 

As at 1 January 2023 
Buildings Land Buildings Total 

Acquisition cost 1,936 1,257 1,481 4,674 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment (33) (257) 7 (283) 
Accumulated depreciation (25) (796) (821) 
Net book value 1,878 1,000 692 3,570 

Reporting year 2023 
Net book value 1,878 1,000 692 3,570 
Acquisitions/foreclosures 73 884 490 1,447 
Disposals (1 ,000) (32) (62) (1 ,094) 
Depreciation of asset disposed 57 57 
Reclassification from/to property, plant and 

44 44 equipment (acquisition cost) 
Reclassified from/to property, plant and 

(23) (23) equipment (accumulated depreciation) 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment 30 (1) 15 44 
Depreciation charge (3) (54) (57) 
Net book value 978 1,851 1,159 3,988 

As at 31 December 2023 
Acquisition cost 1,009 2,109 1,953 5,071 
Accumulated impairment (3) (258) 22 (239) 
Accumulated depreciation (28) (816) (844) 
Net book value 978 1,851 1,159 3 988 

Reporting year 2024 
Net book value 978 1,851 1,159 3,988 
Acquisitions/foreclosures 363 371 734 
Capitalisation of value 1,044 9 1,053 
Disposals (411 ) (892) (67) (1 ,370) 
Depreciation of asset disposed 20 20 
Reclassification from/to property, plant and 

(1,443) (1 25) 483 (1,085) equipment (acquisition cost) 
Reclassified from/to property, plant and 

(311) (311) equipment (accumulated depreciation) 
(Impairment) reversal of impairment 19 19 
Depreciation charge (173) (87) (260) 
Net book value 377 1 214 1 197 2 788 

As at 31 December 2024 
Acquisition cost 562 1,472 2,369 4,403 
Accumulated impairment 16 (258) 22 (220) 
Accumulated depreciation (201) (1 ,194) (1,395) 
Net book value 377 1 214 1197 2 788 

As at 31 December 2024, the LCCU Group had non-current assets with the net book value of EUR 2,788 thousand 
(2023: EUR 3,988 thousand) classified as investment property. EUR 1,591 thousand residual value of the assets 
has been taken over for debts, EUR 1,197 thousand of these assets have been leased to third parties and accrued 
depreciation of EUR 1,194 thousand is included in these assets. (2023: EUR 2,829 thousand of the residual value 
of the assets were taken over for debt, EUR 1,159 thousand of these assets were leased to third parties and 
accrued depreciation of EUR 816 thousand was included in these assets). As at 31 December 2024, the LCCU 
Group had non-leased assets with the net book value of EUR 5,565 thousand (2023: EUR 4,793 thousand). In 
2024, following the assessment of foreclosed assets, EUR 19 thousand of an increase in value recognised (2023: 
the increase in value amounted to EUR 44 thousand). Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income under impairment of loans and other assets. As at 31 December 2024 the investment 
property was not subject to revaluation by third parties. If the investment property were revalued, management 
expects that the value of this property would be higher than the residual value. 
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NOTE 22. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

2024 
Land 125 

Buildings 2,340 

2023 

-------------

Total _____ 2,;._4_65 ______ _ 

NOTE 23. OTHER ASSETS 

2024 2023 
Deferred expenses 1,023 1,191 
Advance solidarity contribution 676 
Other current assets 210 223 
Accrued income 74 80 
Other assets 1,155 518 

Total 2,462 2,688 

NOTE 24. AMOUNTS DUE TO CREDIT AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Funds of other financial institutions and credit unions other than members of 
LCCU Group: 

Term deposits 
Demand deposits 

Funds received from credit and other financial institutions 
Targeted funding from IL TE funds (a) 
Other loans (b) 

Total 

2024 

103,835 
21 ,160 
23,363 
19,351 
4,012 

148,358 

2023 

57,507 
3,898 

15,496 
11,479 
4,017 

76,901 

Interest rates on term deposits from other financial institutions and credit unions varied from 3.00% to 4.50% in 2024 
(from 1.16% to 5.00% in 2023), interest rates on demand deposits were subject to 0.00% both in 2024 and 2023. 

Funds received from credit and other financial institutions: 

a) Targeted funding from IL TE funds: 

In October 2016, LCCU representing a consortium of credit unions signed an agreement with IL TE UAB (former 
lnvesticij4 Garantij4 Fondas UAB (INVEGA)) on the implementation of the Financial Instrument Verslumo Skat­
inimas 2014-2020, financed by Europe's social fund. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of loans 
received under this contract was EUR 5,393 thousand EUR (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 7,489 thousand). 

In 2024 and 2023, LCCU took part in implementation off the financial instruments aimed at facilitating conditions 
for the activities of the country's agricultural entities. As at 31 December 2024, LCCU had the following loans 
received under the Joint Activity (Consortium) Agreements per financial instruments: 

• Financial instrument implemented by IL TE UAB (former Zemes 0kio Paskol4 Garantijos Fondas UAB) 
"Provision of Loans Funded Using Funds Reimbursed under the Financial Instruments of the Lithuanian 
Rural Development Programme 2007-2013, Giving Priority to Entities Engaged in Primary Production". 
As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of loans received under this instrument was EUR 1,167 
thousand EUR (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 1,425 thousand). 

• Financial instrument implemented by IL TE UAB (former Zemes 0kio Paskol4 Garantijos Fondas UAB) 
"Loans to Entities Affected by Adverse Climatic Events". The carrying amount of loans received under 
this instrument was EUR 146 thousand EUR (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 464 thousand). 
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• Financial instrument implemented by IL TE UAB "Setting up of Young Farmers". The carrying amount of 
loans received under this instrument was EUR 990 thousand. 

• Financial instrument implemented by ILTE UAB "Loans for Investments, Including Sustainable Invest­
ments, into Agricultural Holdings". The carrying amount of loans received under this instrument was 
EUR 1,750 thousand. 

• Financial instrument implemented by IL TE UAB "Risk-Shared Loans Financed by the European Regional 
Development Fund". The carrying amount of loans received under this instrument was EUR 600 thou­
sand. 

In 2023, while representing a consortium of credit unions, LCCU signed an agreement with IL TE UAB (former 
lnvesticij4 Garantij4 Fondas UAB (INVEGA)) on the implementation of the financial instrument Open Credit 
Fund 3 (OCF3). As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of loans received under this contract was 
EUR 9,305 thousand EUR (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 2,100 thousand). 

As at 31 December 2024, balances with the central bank of EUR 4,819 thousand (as at 31 December 2023, 
EUR 1,989 thousand) were related to the financing of Group members under the instruments of UAB and 
IL TE, and these funds will have to be transferred to the aforementioned bodies to fulfil the contractual liabil­
ities. For additional information see Note 29. 

b) Other loans: 

• There were no new other loans originated in 2024. In September 2023, LCCU received a loan of EUR 
2,000 thousand from the Council of Europe Development Bank. The loan matures in 2029, with the 
interest rate of 3.32% set for 2024 (4.36% for 2023). The carrying amount of other loans received was 
EUR 4,012 thousand as at 31 December 2024 (EUR 4,017 thousand as at 31 December 2023). 

As at 31 December 2024, the loans received by LCCU as part of monetary policy operations of the Eurosystem 
had not been utilised, and the amount of available loan was EUR 4.1 million. As at 31 December 2023, the loans 
also had not been utilised, and the amount of available loan was EUR 3.8 mill ion. This is a credit line provided by 
the Bank of Lithuania for pledged debt securities. 

The remaining amount of loans received from credit and other financial institutions consisted of funds received but 
not yet repaid in accordance with those commitments. 

NOTE 25. DEPOSITS OF OTHER PERSONS 

2024 2023 

Demand deposits from legal persons 39,642 31 ,396 

Term deposits from legal persons 28,655 18,416 

Demand deposits from natural persons 166,980 161,495 

Term deposits from natural persons 611 ,866 481 ,596 

Total 847,143 692,903 

As at 31 December 2024, interest rates on term deposits from other parties varied from 0% to 7.8% (2023: from 0% 
to 8.2%), interest rates on demand deposits varied from 0% to 3.9% (2023: from 0% to 3.0%). 
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NOTE 26. PROVISIONS 

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments 
Total as at January 1 

Increase in provisions for off-balance sheet commitments 
Risk Stage 1 loans 

Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 2 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Risk Stage 3 loans 
Natural persons 
Legal persons 

Total as at 31 December 

Provisions for employee benefits 
Total as at January 1 

Change in provisions for employee benefits through other 
comprehensive income 

Change in provisions for employee benefits through profit or 
loss 

Total as at 31 December 

Total provisions 

NOTE 27. SUBORDINATED LOANS 

2024 

372 
(132) 

30 

30 
(112) 

(2) 
(110) 

(50) 
(7) 

(43) 

240 

2024 

315 

(32) 

283 

523 

2023 

130 

242 

115 

115 
54 
2 

52 
73 
14 
59 

372 

2023 

378 

(63) 

315 

687 

From August 2020, LCCU has received four subordinated loans from international funds. Approved subordinated 
loans totalled EUR 7,442 thousand as at 31 December 2024. These loans were used as follows: EUR 2,000 
thousand were used in 2020, EUR 1,000 thousand in 2021 , EUR 900 thousand in 2022, and EUR 3,500 in 2024. 
The interest rates on subordinated loans varied from 7.16% to 7.36% (2023: from 8.13% to 8.65%). 

As at 31 December 2024, the subordinated loans totalled EUR 457 thousand (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 
1,456 thousand). 

NOTE 28. OTHER LIABILITIES 

2024 2023 

Financial liabilities: 4,104 5,053 

Collected fees payable 15 21 

Lease liabilities 1,675 2,108 

Funds received - instant monitoring 91 388 

Other liabilities 2,323 2,536 

Non-financial liabilities: 2,452 1,992 

Vacation pay accrual 1,998 1,718 

Accrued expenses 377 227 

Advance amounts received 15 6 

VAT payable 62 41 

Total 6,556 7,045 

Other liabilities at the end of the year amounted to EUR 2,323 thousand, and comprised other liabilities, unallo­
cated customer funds and salaries payable in credit unions. The funds received consist of payments suspended 
during the instant monitoring of transactions. 
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NOTE 29. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Commitment to IL TE 
Subordinated loans UAB Other loans 

As at 1 January 2023 5,342 14,533 2,006 
Cash flow items 
Received 50 2,100 2,000 
Repaid (5,153) 
Non-cash flow items 
Interests accrued 13 11 
Balance as at 31 December 2023 5,405 11,480 4,017 
Cash flow items 
Received 3,500 10,540 
Repaid {1 ,000) {2,669) 
Non-cash flow items 
Interests accrued (6) (5) 
As at 31 December 2024 7,899 19,351 4,012 

NOTE 30. EQUITY AND RESERVES 

Primary and additional member shares, reserve capital 

Primary Additional sus- Additional unsus- Repayable Preference 
shares tainable shares tainable shares shares shares 
(units) (units) (units) (units) (units) 

2023 m. December 31 d. 117 052 1336543 1 485 15 371 3 
Acquisition of member 
shares I transfer to repayable 
shares 7 605 240 410 3 582 
Repayment of member 
shares (5 388) (171 577) (178) (3 363) 
2024 m. December 31 d. 119 269 1 405 376 1 307 15 590 3 

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's member shares were classified as additional ordinary (sustainable or unsus­
tainable) and additional preference member shares. The member share capital of the Group amounts to EUR 53,445 
thousand (2023: EUR 53,961 thousand). It consists of primary, additional and repayable member shares. Primary 
member shares are required to benefit from all credit union services and to participate in the management of the 
credit union, the nominal value of the primary member shares ranges from EUR 28.96 to EUR 6,528.96, and the 
number of units is 119,268. Additional ordinary sustainable member shares are contributions by members that have 
entered into the recalculated capital and may only be repaid with the permission of the competent authorities. Addi­
tional ordinary sustainable member hares were available from 1 January 2017, that is, after the entry into force of 
the new version of the Law on Credit Unions of the Republic of Lithuania. The additional ordinary member shares 
acquired before 1 January 2017 were considered unsustainable additional ordinary member shares. The nominal 
value of these shares in 2024 ranged from EUR 0.01 to EUR 46,339.2, and the number of units is 1,406,683. Addi­
tional preference member shares may be offered to members of a credit union if the credit union has approved such 
type of member shares and the amount of the dividend in its Articles of Association. Preference member shares are 
classified in Tier 2 of the credit union's recalculated capital. The amount of the preference member shares may not 
exceed 1/3 of the total share capital of the credit union. Preference member shares may be converted into ordinary 
member shares by a resolution of the general meeting if the Articles of Association of the credit union so provide 
and if the majority of the members of each class vote in favour by a majority of at least 2/3 of the members of the 
credit union attending the general meeting. The nominal value of preference member shares ranges from EUR 4,000 
to EUR 13,000, and the number of units is 3. 

All the member shares of the Group have been paid. Each member of the Group who has the primary member share 
has one vote, regardless of the amount of the additional member share paid. 

No union mergers took place in 2024 and 2023. On 6 January 2023, Vievio Taupa Credit Union changed its name 
to Elektrenai Credit Union. On 27 April 2023, Pakruojis Farmers Credit Union was renamed to Pakruojis Credit 
Union. On 11 May 2023, Sirvintai Credit Union was renamed to KB Pilies Credit Union. On 18 October 2024, Achema 
Credit Union was renamed to Tikslas Credit Union. 
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In 2017, the State of Lithuania became a member and acquired (primary and additional) member shares of LCCU. 
The total value of contributed shares of the State of Lithuania is EUR 8,879,800, which contains: (a) EUR 1,000 of 
primary member shares; (b) EUR 8,878,800 of additional member shares. Regardless of the treatment of this mem­
ber share contribution under IFRS, it means the participation of the State of Lithuania in the capital of LCCU and 
provides the State of Lithuania with 10% voting rights. The balance as at 31 December 2024 was EUR 5,279,200 
(as at 31 December 2023, EUR 6,579,400). 

On 15 March 2018, LCCU and representatives of the Ministry of Finances of the Republic of Lithuania signed an 
agreement on redemption of LCCU's member shares. Under this agreement, LCCU committed to redeem these 
member shares within 10 years' time frame (last purchase on 31 December 2027). Service costs (in %) are also set 
for the State capital and recognized in the statement of comprehensive income under the caption "Interest and 
related expense". In 2024, the total amount of State aid servicing costs incurred by the Group was EUR 371 thousand 
(2023: EUR 449 thousand). In 2024, LCCU repaid additional State owned member shares at amount of EUR 1,300 
thousand (2023: LCCU repaid additional State owned member shares at amount of EUR 1,300 thousand). The total 
value of member shares held by the State of Lithuania was EUR 5,279 thousand in 2024 (EUR 6,579 thousand in 
2023). 

When redeeming member shares, the value of the redeemed shares is reduced in accordance with Article 14 of the 
CU Act. Part 2 recalls. When redeeming to the person his/her contribution for the principal and/or additional member 
shares, the credit union shall proportionally reduce the redeemed member share for a member according to the 
year's, when a request to redeem was obtained, the total amount of retained losses and legal reserve or the reserve 
capital, if the total amount constitutes loss, in the statement of financial position. The outstanding amount is treated 
as reserve capital. The purpose of the reserve capital is to guarantee the financial stability of the credit union. The 
reserve capital of a credit union may only be used to cover the operating losses of a credit union by decision of the 
general meeting of the credit union. 

Financial assets revaluation reserve is created when securities held by credit unions at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are revalued. As at 31 December 2024, financial assets revaluation reserve amounted to 
EUR 265 thousand (as at 31 December 2023, EUR 880 thousand). The increase in the price of energy resources 
due to the outbreak of Russia's military invasion in 2022 contributed to a higher inflation, which was controlled by 
raising interbank offered rates. This led to a decrease in the fair value of securities bearing lower interest rates, and 
a negative financial asset revaluation reserves was therefore created in 2023. In 2023, the interbank offered rates 
were further increased to contain inflation which continued to grow. In 2024, interbank offered rates started to fall, 
leading to an increase in both the fair value of lower-yielding long-term securities and the price of newer, higher­
yielding securities. This, together with the maturing of previously acquired securities and the increasing share of 
higher coupon securities, led to the reversal of the negative financial asset revaluation reserve and the positive 
revaluation reserve for financial assets which started to grow. 

The mandatory reserve is made up of credit union profit deductions. Deductions to the mandatory reserve are man­
datory and may not be less than 90% of the credit union's distributable profits until the legal reserve or reserve capital 
and reserve capital represent at least 9/10 of the credit union's equity. The reserve may be used only to cover the 
operating losses of the credit union by the decision of the general meeting of members of the credit union. When 
part of the mandatory reserve is used to cover the operating losses of the credit union, it is again deducted from the 
distributable profit to the mandatory reserve to the required amount. The LCCU Group's retained earnings (losses) 
are made up of the current year's result of the Group's credit unions and historical accumulated losses. Not all of the 
prior year's earnings are allocated to reserves, because part of the earnings is used to absorb losses. 

NOTE 31. RELATED PARTIES 

The Group's related parties are considered members of the Boards of credit unions, the Supervisory Boards and 
persons closely related to them, members of the Stabilization Fund Commission and the management of LCCU. 
Apart from the relationships listed below, there are no other financial instruments or payments/relationships with 
related parties. 

Remuneration due to related persons (including related taxes) 

Other disbursement payable to associated persons (remuneration for attending meetings, inter­
est, etc.) 
Balances of loans granted 
Accepted deposit balances 

Balances of other assets, excluding loans granted 
Balances of other liabilities to related parties, excluding accepted deposits 

2024 2023 

5,827 4,920 

2,118 1,830 

4,903 4,918 
11 ,050 9,413 

1,103 166 
506 814 
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As at 31 December 2024, 232 loans were granted to the related parties. The loans were granted at interest rates 
consistent with market conditions - as at 31 December 2024, the weighted interest rate was 6,45. The loans are 
secured by real estate, cars, warranties and other measures. Average term for these loans during year 2024 - 11 
years. 

NOTE 32. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

LCCU Group is required by the Bank of Lithuania to comply with capital adequacy, liquidity coverage, maximum loan 
amount per borrower, large loans and open foreign exchange position. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, LCCU 
Group complied with all the mandatory requirements. As at 31 December 2024, all credit unions complied with the 
applicable requirements (2023: all credit unions complied with the applicable requirements). 

It is noted that as at 31 December 2024 the equity of 6 credit unions (5 as at 31 December 2023) was lower than 
the member share capital and did not meet the requirements of the Law on Credit Unions of the Republic of Lithua­
nia. The restoration of unions' equity depends on future profitable activities. All of these credit unions in their draft 
action plans approved by their Boards, intend to make a profrt in the coming years and thus remediate this non­
compliance. 

NOTE 33. OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Tax Authorities may at any time during three successive years after the end of the reporting tax year carry out 
the inspection of accounting records and impose additional taxes or fines. LCCU's management is not aware of any 
circumstances that might result in a potential material liability in this respect. 

At 31 December 2024, the amount of loans granted but not yet paid totalled EUR 37,243 thousand (as at 31 De­
cember 2023, EUR 27,067 thousand). As at 31 December 2024, the Group's guarantees, i.e. the guarantees issued 
by the credit unions for loans to their members, totalled EUR 764 thousand (2023: EUR 837 thousand). 

As at 31 December 2024, LCCU had issued EUR 6 million of loans to finance those affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic through the instruments of IL TE UAB (EUR 15 million of loans as at 31 December 2023), including related 
funds of EUR 277 thousand repaid by the customers (EUR 2,7 million as at 31 December 2023). As at 31 December 
2024, LCCU had issued EUR 15 million of new loans to finance those affected by the war through the instruments 
of IL TE UAB (former Z:OPGF), including related funds of EUR 696 thousand repaid by the customers. These LCCU's 
loans are considered credit risk-free, therefore these loans and related funds are not recognised in the statement of 
financial position. 

As at 31 December 2024, there were no legal disputes. As at 31 December 2023, one credit union was involved 
in a litigation (for EUR 100 thousand) with the members of credit union regarding validity and repayment of addi­
tional member shares. 

NOTE 34. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 

On 1 January 2025, Elektrenai Credit Union withdrew from LCCU. There were no other events, which could have a 
significant effect on these financial statements. 
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